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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

This Report, including information included or imporated by reference in this document, contaiaestents which constitute forwalabking
statements. Forward looking statements made byypstiogk issuers such as the Company are excludettfre safe harbor in Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-loglstatements may relate to our financial conditiesults of operation, plans, objectives, o
future performance. These statements are basedoy assumptions and estimates and are not guasasftagure performance. Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticighiie any forward-looking statements, as they wélpdnd on many factors about which we are
unsure, including many factors which are beyondommtrol. The words “may,” “would,” “could,” “shod|” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“predict,” “project,” “potential,” “believe,” “coninue, plan,” and “estimateg’s well as similar expressions, are meant to
identify such forward-looking statements.

assume,” “intend,

Forward-looking statements are subject to ceraksrand uncertainties which could cause actualte® differ materially from those
anticipated. Such risk and uncertainties includéiaut limitation, those described below under ItéA- Risk Factors and the following:

(1) the Company has limited cash resources andsifiot able to obtain further financing requifed continuing operations, marketing, prod
development, and research its business operatitifsily (2) the Company has not generated suligthrevenues or cash flow from
operations, and as a result, faces a high rislusiiness failure, (3) the Company’s lack of divecsifion and dependence on material customer
increases the risks associated with the Compamgmbss and an investment in the Company, anddhg@ny'’s financial condition may
deteriorate rapidly if it fails to succeed in deihg the Company’s business and expanding ouomestbase, (4) the Company may not
effectively execute the Company’s business plamanage the Company’s potential future businessloewvent, (5) ) the Company may
expend a substantial amount of time and resouncesrinection with the Securities and Exchange Casion'’s (“SEC”) recent subpoena,
potential inquiries or legal actions in connectwith its filings with the SEC or otherwise, whichagnimpair the Company’s ability to raise
capital and to operate its business, (6) the Cogipdiusiness could be impaired if it fails to cogplith applicable regulations, (7) the
Company has had significant turnover in managemedtmay not be able to retain key management peestm manage the Company or
laboratory scientists to carry out the Company'sibess operations, which could have a materialradveffect on the Company’s business,
(8) the market for lab-grown diamond may not depeds anticipated, and (9) competition may adveraffct our business. You are cautionec
not to place undue reliance on forward-lookingestegnts, which speak only as of the date hereof Cidmpany undertakes no obligation to
publish revised forward-looking statements to @flevents or circumstances after the date herewf @flect the occurrences of unanticipated
events. You are also urged to review and consideafally the various disclosures made hereaftethByCompany from time to time with its
SEC filings.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Corporate History

We were incorporated on September 17, 2009 in téte $f Nevada under the name Krossbow Holdingp@ation (“Krossbow”).
Krossbow did not implement its original businessnpdnd decided to acquire existing technology &k $e efficiently and effectively produce
man-made diamond. In connection with this chandausiness purpose, Krossbow changed its name toC8amond Technology Corporation
to reflect its new business direction.

On August 5, 2011, Edward S. Adams and Michael Bn&han acquired control of the Company througiptivehase of shares of the
Company'’s issued and outstanding common stock frason Kropp, Krossbow’s sole director and execuffieer at that time.
Messrs. Monahan and Adams served on the CompammgedBf Directors until their resignations form eard on June 30, 2013, and June
23, 2014, respectively. Additionally, on Augus2B]11, the Company executed an Asset Purchase Agregemith another privately-held
Nevada corporation that also had the n*Scio Diamond Technology Corporation” (“Private 89i Under the terms of the Asset Purchase
Agreement, the Company purchased the name “Scim@id Technology Corporation” and acquired othentsgrom Private Scio for
13,000,000 newly issued shares of common stockeo€Company.

On August 31, 2011, the Company acquired certaata®f Apollo Diamond, Inc. (“ADI”) (the “ADI AsgdPurchase”), consisting
primarily of diamond growing machines and intelledtproperty related thereto, for which the Comppaigl ADI an aggregate of $2,000,000.
In connection with the ADI Asset Purchase, the Canypalso agreed to provide certain current and éoistockholders of ADI qualifying as
accredited investors the opportunity to acquiréaugpproximately 16 million shares of common stotkhe Company for $0.01 per share (the
“ADI Offering”).

On June 5, 2012, the Company acquired substantithlbf the assets of Apollo Diamond Gemstone Crafon (“ADGC”) (the
“ADGC Asset Purchase”), consisting primarily of igltown diamond gemstone-related know-how, inventangd various intellectual property,
in exchange for $100,000 in cash and the oppostdioitcertain current and former stockholders of O qualifying as accredited investors to
acquire up to approximately 1 million shares of awon stock of the Company for $0.01 per share (#2GC Offering”) with the intent that
ADI Offering be conducted substantially concurrgmtith the ADGC Offering (collectively, the “ADI/ABC Offering”).

In December, 2011, the Company began a build-oiis @reenville, South Carolina production facili§onstruction was largely
completed in March 2012 and equipment was movead #®I’s former facility in Massachusetts to Southr@lina over the first calendar
quarter of 2012. The Company began initial produrctvith ten diamond growing machines in July 2012.

Since July 2012, the Company has been operatiattaken diamond growing machines in our Greenvdlglity. Through March of
2013, the Company'’s production was focused on im@isutting tool products supplied to a singlestmmer. Subsequent to March 2013, the
Company has expanded its product focus to inclim@ahd gemstone material as well as industrial rizdse

On September 16, 2013, the Company entered irtdes0of agreements with SAAMABA, LLC and S21 Reskadoldings (the
“Grace Rich Agreements”) to form a joint ventur&(ace Rich LTD”) with operations in the People’spblic of China (“PRC”) to deploy
over 100 Company designed diamond growing machleder the Grace Rich Agreements, the Company dr@®d to license its proprietary
technology for the manufacture of diamond gemstafegreed upon specifications. In exchange fotittemse, the Company received
licensing and development revenue and a 30% owipgpsisition in the joint venture. In addition tcetlicensed technology, the Grace Rich
Agreements include obligations for the Companyrtovjole and be compensated for technology consustargices to the joint venture to
support the start-up of operations. The Company doé control the joint venture and is not requi@tchake any on-going funding
contributions to the joint venture and our owngusdtake cannot be reduced from 30%.

On December 16, 2014, the Company entered intgeeement for the Sale and Lease of Growers (theWer Sale-Lease
Agreement”) with Heritage Gemstone Investors, LEEBGI"). Pursuant to the Grower Sale-Lease Agreemtne Company agreed to a sale-
leaseback arrangement for certain diamond groweduged by the Company during the term of the Grd®ade-Leaseback Agreement by
which the Company will sell diamond growers to HaBU then lease the growers back from HGI. The tpexfit margin generated from the
growers will be split between the Company and HGAdcordance with the Grower Sale-Lease AgreeriiéetGrower Sale-Lease Agreement
requires the Company to operate and service thegysy and requires HGI to up-fit certain existimgwgers and to make capital improvements
to the new growers under certain circumstances.Cldrapany will also have the right to repurchasel¢lsed growers upon the occurrence of
certain events.




On December 18, 2014 entered into an arrangemémtRe@naissance Diamonds, Inc. (“Renaissance”)iag&enaissance Created
Diamond Company, LLC (“RCDC"). The Company and Rsesance are each 50% members of RCDC. The arramgjevas entered into in
order to facilitate the development of procedurres r@cipes for, and to market and sell, lab-groancty-colored diamonds. RCDC will
purchase rough diamond material from the Companypaocess and finish the material into finished giemes for sale to various retailers anc
other participants in the market for gemstonesfit8rgenerated by RCDC's operations will be distiédl between the Company and
Renaissance according to the terms of the LLC Agess.

Our Business
General

The Company is first and foremost a materials caomphat has developed proprietary technology thihawgich high quality single
crystal diamond materials are produced througheanital vapor deposition (“CVD”) process (the “DianabTechnology”). The Company’s
primary mission is the development of profitablel @nstainable commercial production of its diamoraderials, which are suitable for known,
emerging and anticipated industrial, technology emasumer applications. The Company intends toygupsogressive development of its core
diamond materials technologies and related intel@@roperty that the Company hopes will evolve iproduct opportunities across various
applications. We believe these opportunities magnbaetized though a combination of end productss@bént ventures and licensing
arrangements with third parties, and through cotihdevelopment of intellectual property. Anticgghipplication opportunities for the
Company’s diamond materials include the followipgecision cutting devices, diamond gemstone jew@loyer switches, semiconductor
processors, optoelectronics, geosciences, watdication, and MRI and other medical science te¢bgyg.

Prior to October 1, 2011, the Company was a devednp stage company. Developmental activities ceasddhe Company
commenced producing diamond materials in July 20&8s than three years into production, the Comp@ajready in the initial phases of
commercializing the Diamond Technology and its gedb become a preferred manufacturer of singlstat diamond and a leading global
supplier of diamond materials for multiple applioas. The Company hopes to further shape the awalof various markets for its product
to leverage the technical foundation of the Diam®@redhnology by expanding into strategic partnersifih select industry leaders with
distribution channels already in place to captugh value application opportunities.

As of March 31, 2015, nearly all of the Company'squction capacity is being sold for use in the gieme market. As of March 31,
2015 we had generated $3,026,282 in cumulativeevenue. Through March 31, 2015, over 50% of oadpct has been sold overseas and
100% of these sales have been to external cust@ndr® our joint venture partners as discusséigdin 8, NOTES 10 and 11.

The Diamond Technology

We acquired our Diamond Technology primarily frorDIAADI was originally founded in 1990 with the da# developing and
perfecting two advanced semiconductor materiallipganitride (now used in light emitting diodes)@diamond. From 2000 onward, ADI
focused solely on diamond and developing a proogsehich large, single-crystal diamond could bevgran a controlled laboratory
environment.

The core Diamond Technology that was acquired byGtbmpany is based on a CVD diamond growth sydbsamond wafers
produced through the Diamond Technology CVD protes® been shown to be exceptionally pure (nitragertent < 10 ppb), and possess
low levels of structural defects. Advances in tieishnology have dramatically improved the quabtyd lowered the cost of high-quality
diamond, resulting in new applications of diamomelectronics, optics, high power devices and quardomputing.

The Diamond Technology provides a materials prddogtlatform and is supported by intellectual pmbpencluding trade secrets,
issued patents (27 in the United States and 9r&igo jurisdictions).

Our Diamond Technology utilizes CVD growth techrgpido produce diamond crystals. This technologlyzets a highly scalable
manufacturing process for producing large sizeh{ujgality diamond crystals at a low cost. Unlike thigh-pressure, high-temperature
(“HPHT") process, the Diamond Technology proce$sna for concurrent production of multiple diamoerystals.

The Company’s diamond crystals are grown on sniasof diamond called “seeds” that the Compatlyegigrows internally or
acquires from third parties. Over time, the Comphag been able to transition to larger seeds thanqusly used. This transition allows the
Company to see a substantial increase in the $ithe anaterial it is producing and allows for then@pany to better match its production to
specific customer needs.




In addition to utilizing larger “seedsgur process can also be scaled through larger itppamond growing machines. The Comp
has successfully developed 4-inch growing technotbgt allows for up to a 100% increase in productapacity from the current 3-inch
growing technology. The Company is implementing thew technology across its production platform amiicipates being substantially
complete with the upgrade during the first fiscaher of 2016.

Finally, we expect that as we increase our prodadgvels, our production costs per carat will atijudecrease due to economies of
scale.

Facilities

The Company’s production facility is located in &ngille, South Carolina. This facility, coveringd90 square feet of leased space
including both our headquarters and our produdaaility, was substantially completed and readygmyduction as of June 30, 2012. Ten of
the production reactors purchased from ADI werégalfed in the facility and are currently operatififne Company is the process of adding twie
additional reactors to the Greenville facility whiwe believe is the maximum capacity of this fagili

The Grace Rich LTD joint venture’s production fégiis under development in the PRC and is not ajp@nal as of March 31, 2015.
Products and Market:

The current market for laboratory-grown diamond a@rs largely unknown and uncertain. Sales of lailooyagrown diamond into the
gemstone market are thought to be very small ctiyrefhe industrial market for these products isendeveloped, but it is diffused globally
and the Company is unable to reliably estimatsiits or breadth.

In addition to the precision cutting market and appnities for the Company in the diamond gemstoaeket, we will continue to
explore other opportunities for our diamond matsriarough applications where the unique properdfediamond may be desirable and
advantageous, including: alternative energy, optisbnics, communications, biotechnology, wateattreent, quantum computing and the
diamond device arenas.

Competitive factors that will influence the market our products include product quality, consistenf supply and price. We believe
that we will be able to compete on the basis ofelfactors. We believe that we will be able toatgllf and efficiently produce lab-grown
diamond possessing substantially the same quaditidcharacteristics of their mined diamond coynates.

Gemstones

Within the gemstone industry, our single-crystaindond can be used in jewelry products requiringhtgbest quality gemstones and
can be regularly grown in matched color sets rapgimpolished sizes from 5-points (0.05 carat®wer 1.50 carats. Our diamond may be well
suited for jewelry featuring matching diamond ofigas sizes, clarities and colors, diamond engagemiregs, and fashion jewelry. The
potential consistency and other potential charesties of lab-grown diamond gemstones grown usiegRiamond Technology may provide
advantages over their mined counterparts in aredsrnatter to jewelers, jewelry manufacturers asmsamers, with potential characteristics
such as:

« Equal quality and brilliance of diamond product;

« Matched sizes, colors and clarities (particulangoods ranging in sizes from 0.05 - 0.50 carats);
« Consistency of diamond finish due to high quality;

« Opportunity for color palette of diamond gemstoraex)

« Lack of negative issues related to environmentdlsotial concerns.

We will seek to establish and maintain market ataggge through consumer education and industry e¢atipa. We intend to require
laser marking of lab-grown diamond grown usingEi@mond Technology (without compromising aesthgticorder to brand and instill
confidence in the consumer and the market as \web differentiate our lab-grown diamond from eartimed diamond. We intend to educate
retailers and consumers on the physical propestidse Company’s lab-grown diamond as comparedit@thdiamond and quality of the
Company’s lab-grown diamond.




Commercial, Industrial and Technological Applicatso

Diamond has exceptional qualities for use in adedralectronics and optics applications, but to,dddgelopment progress has been
slow because of, among other things, diamond'sivelacarcity and high cost. Diamond’s unique hasdn clarity and thermal characteristics
have made it highly desirable for scientific usedecades. However, material consistency issuegemubmics have created barriers to mass
application adoption of diamond. We believe that matented technology and production approach gvéae ability to improve the quality a
lower the cost of producing diamond materials, tingethe opportunity for usage in a wider rangapplications.

The demand for computing and communications pradioas increased significantly. As devices becomeeimbelligent and
ubiquitous, the need for connectivity at very higleeds, data intensive storage needs and everdastputer processors are pushing the limit
of conventional silicorbased devices. Diamond enables these technolagmewe past their current limitations and may ble &b facilitate th
development of next-generation devices in key asaah as wireless networking, optical storage,tagh speed computing.

The Company anticipates several opportunities toetipe our patented technology and production ambran various technological
applications. Pursuit of these opportunities isezted to be directed in part in concert with stgat@artners.

Several of diamond’s properties provide significadtantages over other materials used in devicssfsg, such as high power
switches, radiation detectors, and microwave wirgleuitable for use in plasma fields or other nudleactor highelectromagnetic interferen
(“EMI") environments.

Industrial diamonds already comprise what we eg#riga $1 billion-plus market per year, but consfdow-quality diamonds that
have primarily been utilized in rudimentary cuttiaigd polishing devices. These diamond materialéaagely in the form of diamond grit and
diamond dust. Through the introduction of highe&lity relatively large diamond materials, substalngrowth is anticipated for the industrial
diamond market. As previously noted, we have ilytiexperienced this in precision cutting devices.

The diamond and diamond-like materials historicabgd in the development of these non-gem appitatiave various limitations
that have formerly impeded progress in optoeleatsoand other technology applications. As our pobidn volume increases and
manufacturing costs continue to decrease due toapacity expansion, we anticipate that our diammoatkrials will provide a viable and
potentially economically preferred alternative fioany of these highly-valued electronic, optical amustrial applications.

In order to more fully explore the opportunitiesalissed above, we intend to continue current ptagucf our high quality diamond
materials and to pursue related commercial oppiti¢gnCurrently, we intend to continue to explopportunities in the precision cutting
devices market while concurrently seeking oppotitesifor our lab-grown diamond gemstones.

The Industry and Competition

Our lab-grown diamond gemstones and diamond médaause in industrial applications face competitfrom established
producers and sellers of mined diamond, includioganies such as De Beers, and other known anentwnd potential future manufactur
of lab-grown diamond. Our competitors include langati-national gemstone diamond companies as agefitart-up and development-stage
gemstone diamond and technology companies, sonveah we may not be aware. Many of our competitangehsignificantly greater
financial, technical, manufacturing and marketiagaurces and greater access to distribution chatireah the Company. Many of our
competitors may be able to devote substantiallptgereresources to promotion and systems developtinentwe can. Barriers to developing
competitive technology in our market may not bdisigint to prevent competitors from entering thduetry, and current and new competitors
may be able to develop competing diamond at aivelgtlow cost. We believe that our success wilbeied heavily upon whether we can
achieve significant market acceptance before otenial competitors are able to introduce broadiyepted competitive products.

Companies that produce lab-grown diamond and whpaompete with the Company in one or more of itskats include Element
Six (South Africa), a privately held subsidiaryldé Beers, AOTC Group NV (Netherlands), Pure Grovienidnd/lla Technologies (USA,
Singapore & Malaysia), Washington Diamond/Carnég#titute, Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd. andr@es Technologies (Japan). Other
companies could seek to introduce lab-grown dianwrather competing diamond or to develop compepiragesses for production of lab-
grown diamond and diamond materials. We believeabmpetition will increase as demand for diamoraterials increases for use in
industrial and technology applications and as ladwyg diamonds continue to gain market acceptance.




Raw Materials

The principal raw materials used in the manufactiireur products are diamond seeds and certifigd purity bottled gases. Certain
diamond seeds are purchased from other diamondialgieducers, but the Company maintains its prins@ed inventory through its self-
sustaining seed production. Seeds are re-usedgtnroultiple production runs.

Our manufacturing process is dependent upon largmiats of electrical power delivered on an uninteted basis. The Company has
worked with the local electric utility, a Fortun@@company, to build and operate equipment at ésufacturing site that meets its needs. Thi:
equipment is provided to the Company on a long-teperating lease, which includes warranty, mainteaaand the delivery of electrical
power at attractive per kilowatt/hour rates.

Customers

In July 2012 the Company began to produce diamoanial and entered into a purchase order witmgernational supplier of
precision diamond cutting tools pursuant to whioé Company has been providing CVD single crystataind in specified wafer sizes. At
March 31, 2013, the Company had largely fulfilleglinitial purchase order with this customer. Sitlen, the Company has aggressively
expanded its customer base with a focus on thetgemsnarketplace. During the year ended March 8152the Company had 31 customers
purchasing various materials for industrial and geeme applications.

If we continue to reliably manufacture diamond proid and are successful in expanding our manufagteapacity, we anticipate tt
we will experience increased demand for our praslboth domestically and internationally, given pliéential demand for diamond, the var
of potential uses for these products in gemstoigd, tech applications, alternative energy technietpgand defense technologies.

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises, Conaassji Royalty Agreements or Labor Contrax

At March 31, 2015, we held the following numberpatents:

Jurisdiction No. of Patents

United State! 27

Foreign 9
Total 36

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, then@any had one new patent granted in the Unite@&tahis patent expanded our
intellectual property rights related to our Diamdrethnology.

All of the Company’s patents have various livesdobsn the date of issue. Expiration of individualemts is expected to occur
between 2019 and 2032.

Our research and development staff will continderts to develop proprietary manufacturing procesa®d equipment designed to
enhance our manufacturing facilities and reducéscos

We also own various trademarks and trade secratsvih developed within the Company or acquired fAibt and ADGC.
Distribution

Through March 31, 2015 the Company has had a litmitenber of customers. The Company has distribitégatoducts directly to
these customers without using intermediaries dridigors.

Joint Ventures

On September 16, 2013, the Company entered intGtaee Rich Agreements to form a joint venture weplerations in the PRC. This
joint venture is to initially deploy 100 Sc«-designed diamond growing machines. The Companyiderssed its proprietary technology for the
manufacture of diamond gemstones to the joint verttu produce material of agreed upon specificatitmexchange for the license, the
Company has received licensing and developmenhtevand a 30% non-dilutable ownership positiof@jbint venture. In addition to the
licensed technology, the Grace Rich Agreementsidecbbligations for the Company to provide and dmepensated for technology consulting
services to the joint venture to support the siprof operations. The Company is assisting the j@nture with the initial deployment of the
licensed technology and the development of its ypctidn facility. The Company does not control thimf venture and is not required to make
any on-going funding contributions.




On December 18, 2014, the Company entered interangement with Renaissance Diamonds, Inc. (“Reaai”) creating
Renaissance Created Diamond Company, LLC (“RCDUig Company and Renaissance are each 50% membR@DdE. The arrangement
was entered into in order to facilitate the develept of procedures and recipes for, and to mameall, lab-grown fancy-colored diamonds.
RCDC will purchase rough diamond material from @@mpany and process and finish the material imislied gemstones for sale to various
retailers and other participants in the markegmstones. Profits generated by RCDC's operatidhbendistributed between the Company
and Renaissance according to the terms of the Lg@ément.

Government Regulations

Laboratory technology activities are subject taaas federal, state, foreign and local laws andile@ns, which govern research, lab
development, taxes, labor standards, occupatia@ath) and waste disposal, protection of the enwirent, mine safety, hazardous substances
and several other matters. We believe that wenatempliance in all material respects with applieabchnology, health, safety and
environmental statutes and the regulations prontetbhy the relevant jurisdictions. Currently, thare no costs associated with our
compliance with such regulations and laws. Ceffizdieral and state laws and regulations governe$ting, creation and sale of the types of
diamond we intend to produce. The United Stategfadrade Commission (“FTC”) and other comparabtglatory authorities in the United
States and in foreign countries may extensivelyraggatously regulate our lab-grown diamond, prodigtelopment activities and
manufacturing processes. In the United States; & regulates the introduction and labeling of gms diamond. We may be required to:

« Obtain clearance before we can market and selladmgrown diamond;

« Satisfy content requirements applicable to ourllaggesales and promotional materials;
« Comply with manufacturing and reporting requirenseand

« Undergo rigorous inspections.

The process of obtaining marketing clearance for gemstone diamond from the FTC may prove costtytane consuming. The
FTC has neither approved nor prohibited the ugheferm “cultured” to describe the diamond the @any intends to sell as gemstones.
However, in December 2006, the Jewelers’ VigilaBoemittee submitted a petition (the “Petition”)th® FTC seeking amendment to the
Guides for the Jewelry, Precious Metals, and Pelnthrstries, 16 C.F.R. Part 23 (“Guides”) to in@ufie term “cultured” as a proscribed term
to describe laboratory-created diamond. By opinéated July 21, 2008, the FTC denied the Petifiadjng it did not demonstrate that the use
of the term “cultured” to describe laboratory-cezhtliamond, when qualified by one of the terms joled in the Guides, is deceptive or unfair
and declined to amend the Guides as requestecet®etition. The Company has not procured FTC atearaand the FTC has not precluded
the Company from selling diamond produced usingitanond Technology. FTC has the power to restiietoffer and sale of diamond that
could deceive or have the tendency or effect ofeading or deceiving purchasers or prospectivel@agers with regard to the type, kind,
quality, character, value, origin or other chardsties of a diamond gemstone. Under current gindslissued by the FTC, the Company is
permitted to market its diamond gemstones as “Sated,” “lab-created diamond”, “laboratory creadéamond,” “laboratory grown
diamond” or “cultured” so long as that term is aop@anied by any of the foregoing and such designatioay inhibit marketing descriptions
that are more favorable to creating consumer demaiedmay come under close scrutiny by governmegahcies and industry testing
organizations and also by competitors in the gengstodustry, any of which may challenge our prommtind marketing of our lab-grown
diamond. If our production or marketing is challeddy governmental agencies or competitors, @agtilations are issued that restrict our
ability to produce and market our lab-grown diamasdcultured diamond”, “lab-created diamond”, therwise as a mined diamond
alternative, our business, operating results amhfiial condition could be materially adverseleaféd.

Our lab-grown diamond must also comply with simitaws and regulations of foreign countries in whigd market such diamond. In
general, the extent and complexity of gemstone diahregulation is increasing worldwide. This trendy continue, and the cost and time
required to obtain marketing clearance in any gisuntry may increase as a result. Should it praaessary, there can be no assurances the
our lab-grown diamond will obtain any necessargiigm clearances on a timely basis, or at all.

Federal, state, local and foreign laws and reguiat{especially those regarding approval of genestiamond) are always subject to
change, and could have a material adverse effettteotesting and sale of our lab-grown diamond #metefore, our business.

Research and Developme
Our research and development activities have bhagted to date as we have focused first on estaflént of our production facility

and immediately thereafter on production of diamoraterials for commercial purposes. We expectieshin new technology and intellect:
property development to further improve productdficiencies and develop new products in the future




Environmental Regulations

Our operations are subject to local, state andréddvs and regulations governing environmentalliggaand pollution control. To
date, our compliance with these regulations hasnioamhaterial effect on our operations, capitalneeys, or competitive position, and the cost
of such compliance has not been material. We aablarto assess or predict at this time what e#dditional regulations or legislation could
have on our activities.

Employees
We had eight full-time employees as of March 311,30
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Repo

We maintain an Internet website at the followindm@ds: http://www.sciodiamond.com. The contentthefwebsite are not
incorporated either directly or by reference irtis =orm 10-K or into our other filings with the SEThe Company makes available on or
through our Internet website certain reports andradments to those reports that are filed or fugddio the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Exchange Act. These include annuantspn Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10:@yent reports on Form 8-K and
beneficial ownership reports on Forms 3, 4 andhis ihformation is available on our website freecbfirge as soon as reasonably practicable
after we electronically file the information witbr furnish it to, the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Our business, financial condition, and results pé@tions could be harmed by any of the followiis§g, or other risks that have not
been identified or which we currently believe areriaterial or unlikely. Shareholders should cargfubnsider the risks described below in
conjunction with the other information in this Foff-K and the information incorporated by referemt¢his Form 10-K, including our
financial statements and related not

Risks Related to Our Business

We have a very limited operating history, and hameurred losses to date. We have generated limiegenues to date, and
therefore, it is difficult to evaluate our businessd prospects.

Our Company is in the preliminary stages of operativhile our Company has recently engaged in nee-gmmoducing business
activities, it is not yet a profitable enterpriselanay incur substantial losses for the foresedahlee. In addition, the Company’s revenues ar
presently derived from a limited number of custasn@the Company has not finalized the scope of midtanticipates it will bring to marke
As a company in the early stages of operationpasimess is subject to all the risks inherentiewa business enterprise. We have no
substantial operating history for investors to @deisin evaluating our business and prospects. Wineking an investment decision, investors
should consider the risks, expenses and difficuttiat we may encounter as a young company in anmaket. These risks include, but are not
limited to, the following:

« Our need to fund and manage our rapidly develoaimjchanging operations;

« Our need to expand our sales and marketing aesviti

« Our need to quickly hire and integrate new pershrmeuding various levels of senior managemenbwhve been hired
relatively recently

« Our ability to develop additional applications andrkets for our diamond materials, including thenttbnd gemstone industry;

« Our ability to produce diamond materials sufficitmmeet the specifications and needs of variodsstrial and technology
applications

« Our ability to produce diamond materials and labwgr diamond sufficient to meet anticipated demamnthé gemstone
marketplace

« Acceptance of our lab-grown diamond in the gemstoaeketplace; and

« The need to further refine and improve our techgphith respect to man-made diamond developmemnigigpand
commercialization — including the need to makedt@nond growing process commercially viable, acaielet (by our own and
third party measures) and economical — and ouliét®ial property and product offerings, and thedhto respond to changing
technologies and consumer preferen
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Likewise the diamond materials and lab-grown diachgemstones produced using the Diamond Technolagle¢tively “Scio
Diamond Materials”) are in a relatively early stafelevelopment and are subject to the risks inftérethe development and marketing of
Scio Diamond Materials, including unforeseen desmanufacturing or other problems or failure to@ep market acceptance. Our business |
subject to the risks inherent in the transitioneahnology from research and development and proégbroof-of-concept to commercial
production and market acceptance.

Failure by the Company to complete and integraterercial development of the Scio Diamond Materiiatgll market and distribut
in sufficient quantities to meet market demand widwdve a material adverse effect on the Compangsmbss, operating results and financial
condition. Accordingly, the Company’s prospects traesconsidered in light of the risks, expensesdiffitulties frequently encountered by
companies in their early stage of developmentjqadarly technology-based companies operating déheloping and unproven manufacturing
processes.

To address these risks, the Company must, amoieg thiings, respond to competitive developmentsaettnd motivate qualified
personnel, develop market acceptance for its digmestablish effective distribution channels, dffety manage any growth that may occur
and continue to upgrade and successfully comméeeitie Diamond Technology and Scio Diamond Maliiaorporating such technology.

The Company purchased its Diamond Technology frdadh @&nd ADGC (together, the “Apollo Companies”). Nhar of the Apollo
Companies was able to successfully (profitably)ellgy and commercialize their man-made diamond deweént/growing process.

We will require additional funding.

We currently have limited cash and working capitasupport our operations. Our future continuingragions will require additional
funding, and we may not be able to obtain suchiftpdn acceptable terms or at all. We likely witjuire additional capital to be able to fund
continued development and improvement of the psfmsgrowing Scio Diamond Materials and to fund expansion of manufacturing
capacity to meet projected growth of the markeoiar diamond. There can be no assurance that $faetsdor raising capital will not involve
substantial dilution with respect to existing otuite stockholders of the Company.

Our future capital requirements will depend on meagjors, including the speed at which our producpirocess can be scaled-up for
high yield production, market acceptance of andatarfor our diamond, and the timing of our expamsito new diamond markets. Our
future capital requirements depend upon many factocluding, but not limited to:

« The rate at which we increase our production caypaci

« The rate at which we expand our sales and markepegations;

« The rate at which we attract consumers, distrilsudmd strategic relationships;

« The extent to which we are able to develop andaggthe technology and infrastructure; and
« The response of competitors to our Scio Diamonducbofferings.

We expect additional financing to be required drate can be no assurance that additional equilorrfinancing, if required, will be
available on acceptable terms or at all. If weaadditional funds by selling stock, the percentagaership of our then current stockholders
will be reduced, and we may raise these funds satturities that have rights, preferences, or ok equal or superior to the rights of
investors owning our common shares. If we canrieeradequate funds to satisfy our capital requirgsiave may have to limit our operations
significantly, or the Company could terminate opierss entirely, resulting in a complete loss oféstment for our stockholders. Our inability
to obtain financing on acceptable terms when neadedd have a material adverse effect on the Coipdnusiness, operating results and
financial condition.

We have had significant turnover in key managememtrsonnel.

We have had significant turnover in our executiffecers. Our success depends in part upon ourtaldiretain the services of certain
executive officers and other key employees anderskills, experience and performance of senioragament and certain other key persol
most of whom have either never worked together oo vave worked together for only a short periotroé. The loss of the services of our
executive officers or other key employees wouldenawnaterial adverse effect on our business, apgragsults and financial condition.
Because we are in the early stages of commerdializave are also dependent on our ability to riécretain and motivate personnel with
technical, manufacturing and chemical vapor dejowsjtrocess skills. There are a limited numberetpnnel with these qualifications and
competition for such personnel may be intense.i@ability to attract, integrate and retain addiabgualified key personnel would materially
adversely affect our business, operating resultisfiaancial condition.
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We may expend a substantial amount of time and rgses in connection with SEC, other regulatory ailoskholder-related inquiries or
legal actions related to our filed financial stateants and other disclosures and the transactionsatet! thereto or other matters.

We have recently received a subpoena issued byEleordering the provision of documents and relatimmation concerning
various corporate transactions between the Comaadyts predecessors and other persons and enflttesCompany is fully cooperating w
this inquiry. We may expend a substantial amoutineé and resources in connection with the SEC seib@, other regulatory or stockholder-
related inquiries or legal actions related to a@vusly filed financial statements and other ltisares and the transactions related thereto or
other matters. Such actions could have a matatigrae effect on the Company’s liquidity and finahcondition and could also affect our
ability to file periodic reports on a timely basisd investor confidence in the accuracy and compéests of our financial statements, which in
turn could harm our business and have an advefiesgt eh our stock price and our ability to raiseitidnal funds.

We expect future losses.

In order to achieve a commercially viable operatisa have made and expect to make further significevestments in technology,
infrastructure, research and development. We expestpend substantial financial and other resauoreexpanding our operations, in
particular our diamond growth technology infrastune, diamond fabrication, and sales/marketingvaigs. As a result, we must generate
significant revenues to achieve and maintain pabfiity. We expect that our sales and marketingea@sps, general and administrative expe
as well as the continued development expenseswilinue to increase.

Our business model is unproven.

Our initial business model was focused on sellailgdgrown diamond for various precision cutting &gilons. We are concurrently
seeking to produce other lab-grown diamond forilrgeamstone consumption and other commercial apptins. Although other companies
have sold some minimal amounts of lab-grown diamgemstones to date, the full extent of the mardeséich lab-grown diamond is not fully
known. Our business model is relatively new, isrompn and is likely to continue to evolve. Accoglin our business model may not be
successful, and we may need to make substantinfjelBahereto. Our ability to generate significavenues will depend, in large part, on our
ability to successfully market our product to camsus, distributors and commercial customers. Wenihto continue to develop our business
model as the market for our products evolves.

We are wholly dependent on the Diamond Technology.

Our diamond supply depends entirely on our abititynanufacture diamond using the Diamond Technodaguired via the
August 31, 2011 purchase of assets by the CompanyADI and the June 5, 2012 purchase of assetisdoompany from ADGC (together,
the “Asset Purchase”).

Although the ability to produce limited quantitieEhigh quality lab-grown diamond gemstones hasiliBamonstrated, it has yet to be
proven that such success can be transferred mitasa production process that will yield high-qyadiemstones and material suitable for retail
gemstone distribution and commercial/industriall@ations. The inability or difficulty to transfehe Diamond Technology into a high-yield
production facility would have a material adverffiee on our business, operating results and firdrondition. Any disruption in our ability
to produce high quality lab-grown diamond would éavsignificant material effect on our business.

Our future revenues are unpredictable, and we exipear operating results to fluctuate from period fgeriod.

Our lack of operating history and the emerging reatf the markets in which we expect to competeamtdifficult for us to
accurately forecast revenues in any given perigdsuch, revenues could fall short of our expeatatibwe experience production delays or
difficulties. Likewise, revenues could fall shoftexpectations should our product not be met withdemand we anticipate from the
marketplace. We have limited experience in finadna@nning for our business on which to base oanpéd operating expenses.

Our operating results are likely to fluctuate sahgtlly from period to period as a result of a t@mof factors, many of which are
beyond our control. These factors include, butnatdimited to, the following:

« Outside market influences beyond our control, idtlg extended periods of decreased demand fordsaioond;
« Our ability to enter into successful strategic tielaships;

« Our ability to attract purchasers and/or distrilosito

« The amount and timing of operating costs and cepipenditures relating to expansion of productperations;
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« The rate at which individuals and organizationseatour diamond;

« An announcement or introduction of new or enhardiathonds or services by our competitors;
« Our ability to attract and retain qualified persehrand

« Pricing policies instituted by our current and pblesfuture competitors.

The Company has generated limited revenue to date@nsequently its operations are subject tasksrinherent in the establishm:
of a new business enterprise. For the period frigaption, September 17, 2009, through March 3152k Company has an accumulated
deficit of ($18,738,915). We are currently genemgiimited revenues and expect to continue to gegaeevenue in the future, but there can be
no assurances that we will ever generate sufficergnues to achieve profitability. If we do acl@qurofitability, there can be no assurances
that we can sustain or increase profitability.

Our ability to develop our core technologies is gedt to uncertainties.

The process by which we plan to manufacture diani®héghly complex. We anticipate that customen$ kdve highly specific
quality standards that our diamond will be requiedheet. The diamond we intend to sell is in thdyestages of development and there ca
no assurances that it will meet high customer stedsd Product failure or the inability to meet omsér requirements would have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating resottginancial condition. The process by which wenpia produce our diamond requires the
integration of several complex components, somegtath will be provided by third-party suppliers. 8uccessful integration of the Diamond
Technology with third-party products will determitie performance and scalability of our productioocess. We will be dependent upon our
employees and vendors to maintain an adequatadestd technical support infrastructure to ensueesticcessful adoption and rollout of our
diamond to customers. We currently have limitedegigmce in these areas. Failing in any of thesasareuld materially adversely affect our
business.

We may not be able to establish effective distribatchannels.

We initially intend to sell our diamond in selectadrkets in the United States and internation&llg. expect that we will be required
to enter into distribution agreements with, and & dependent upon, a number of third partiegligtribution and sales of our diamond. We
are currently selling diamond directly to customemsl have not yet entered into distribution agregmeith any distributors. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to enter into distion agreements with distributors or that outrdigtion strategy will prove to be successful.
Additionally, there can be no assurance that thigtars will devote the efforts needed for succdsdiitribution of our diamond. The inability
of the Company to enter into favorable arrangemeitts distributors or to achieve desired distrilbatiof our diamond would have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating resuott§inancial condition.

Our sales of diamond for commercial applicatioresdependent upon our ability to enter into profeakelationships with businesses
best able to reap rewards from the unique chaiatitsrof diamond. There is no assurance that vildbeiable to initiate and maintain these
relationships.

The Diamond Technology may be vulnerable to failure

Our success depends, in part, on the performaelahility and availability of the Diamond Technglpand the diamond we
ultimately produce. The Diamond Technology and diachproduced thereby may be vulnerable to faillire failure of the Diamond
Technology or diamond produced thereby could agdeifect our business. The process for manufagudiamond using the Diamond
Technology is vulnerable to disruptions due to @etq of factors, which may lead to interruptiodgays, and losses of opportunities or
inability to consistently market and sell our latmgn diamond. The occurrence of any of the foreg@ould have a material adverse effect on
our business.

We may need to effectively manage rapid growth of operations.

Our ability to successfully offer diamond and tgiement our business plan in new markets requimesffactive planning and
management process. We are in the process of giogeaur operations and anticipate having to irseeaur headcount as well. Increasing our
operations and potentially experiencing rapid glowbuld place a significant strain on our manageregstems, infrastructure and resources.
We will need to continue to improve our financiadananagerial controls and reporting systems aocdegiures, and will need to continue to
expand, train and manage our workforce.

Furthermore, we may be required to manage an isicrgaumber of relationships with various userstamers and other third parti
Any failure to expand any of the foregoing aredieitly and effectively could cause our busintssuffer. We could experience a period of
rapid and significant growth, which could contirmeer several years. We believe rapid growth wolddga significant strain on our resour
Our ability to manage growth effectively will regeius to implement and improve operational andhfineg systems and to expand, train and
manage our employee base. We also may be reqoiredriage multiple relationships with various sugrgli customers and other third parties.
Our future operating results will also depend onahility to expand sales and marketing, reseanchdevelopment and administrative suppor
organizations. If the Company were unable to mamgggeth effectively, our business, financial comatitand results of operations would be
materially adversely affected.
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We will need to hire additional personnel.

Our future success depends on our ability to ifigrattract, hire, train, retain and motivate higkkilled executive, technical,
managerial, sales and marketing and business geweltt personnel. We intend to hire a number of @kex, technical, sales, and marketing,
business development and administrative personurgigithe next one or two years. Competition foalfied personnel may prove intense,
particularly in the technology markets. If we f@milsuccessfully attract, assimilate and retainficgent number of qualified executives,
technical, managerial, sales and marketing, busidegelopment and administrative personnel, ounbas could suffer.

Our success depends upon achieving a critical massustomers and strategic relationships.

Our success is largely dependent upon achievingfisignt market acceptance for our diamond. Theketgior our diamond is at an
early stage of development. Although we believé tha diamond will ultimately achieve broad marketeptance, our existing and potential
competitors may offer diamond that could negatiadfect the market acceptance of our product amdagi@ our business prospects.

Our success is also dependent upon attractingfisigimi numbers of distributors and strategic relaships in order to market our
diamond. In particular, our ability to enter interteficial distribution partnerships will dependange part upon our success in convincing
diamond gemstone consumers that our lab-grown didrgemstone is of a desired quality. Failure tdeaghand maintain a critical mass of
market acceptance will seriously harm our busimesise diamond gemstone industry.

The current and future state of the global econommay curtail our operations and our anticipated ravees.

Our business may be adversely affected by changgsmestic and international economic conditionsluding inflation, changes in
consumer preferences and changes in consumer sgeanaties, personal bankruptcy and the ability tiecbour accounts receivable. Changes
in global economic conditions may adversely affeetdemand for our products and make it more difffito collect accounts receivable,
thereby negatively affecting our business, opegatasults and financial condition. The recent giians in credit and other financial markets
and deterioration of national and global econoroieditions could, among other things, impair thafioial condition of some of our customers
and suppliers, thereby increasing customer badsdebton-performance by suppliers.

Acts of war, terrorism or other unknown and unexped events could disrupt our business and we cd#dequired to cease our operatiol

Involvement in a war or other military action otsof terrorism may cause significant disruptiomémmerce throughout the world.
To the extent that such disruptions result in élagls or cancellations of customer orders, (iigaeyal decrease in consumer spending, (iii) ou
inability to effectively market and distribute goroducts or (iv) our inability to access capitalrkeds, our business and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected. Weusable to predict whether the involvement in a aranther military action will result in any
long-term commercial disruptions or if such invatvent or responses will have any loegm material adverse effect on our business, test
operations or financial condition.

The Company continues to receive a “going conceuialification in our financial statements that mighcreate additional doubt about our
ability to stay in business, which could result intotal loss of investment by our stockholders.

We have not generated material revenues and haadivie operating cash flows. These issues, amdrgratraise substantial doubt
about our ability to continue as a “going concern.”
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Risks Related to Our Industry

The potential market for our lab-grown diamond isyproven and may not materialize.

There currently is no widely-developed market fiy-grown diamond gemstones, and we believe thapanies operating in the
gemstone field may not be fully aware of the exiseeand attributes of our lab-grown diamond. Ahéscase with any new or potential
product, market acceptance and demand are subjadignificant amount of uncertainty. Our futureahcial performance will depend upon
consumer acceptance of lab-grown diamond as atieadind comparable alternative to mined diamortiaiher gemstones. Because no
widely-developed markets now exist for lab-growardond gemstones, it is difficult to predict theuhet growth rate, if any, and the size of the
market for our lab-grown diamond gemstones. We smnd significant amounts of capital to acquiremtiad production systems at a time
when demand for our lab-grown diamond is not a&vallto fund those expenditures. The market fodabowgrown diamond gemstones may
never develop or may develop at a slower pacedkpacted due to a general lack of consumer acasptafiab-grown diamond gemstones. If
the market fails to develop or develops more slawin expected, or if our lab-grown diamond gemesato not achieve significant market
acceptance, our business, operating results aaddial condition would be materially adversely afézl.

We face significant competition.

Our lab-grown gemstone diamond will face compatifimm established producers and sellers of eaitiedndiamond and other
known and potential manufacturers of lab-grown gemss. Other companies could seek to introducgtatyn diamond or other competing
diamonds or to develop competing processes forymtazh of labgrown diamond gemstones. We believe that the mareessful the Compa
is in creating market acceptance for Scio diamohitiincluded lab-grown gemstone diamond, the nsorapetition can be expected to
increase. Increased competition could result ir@ehse in the price charged by the Company fodiemnond or reduce demand for our
diamond, which would have a material adverse efieabur business, operating results and finanoiatlition. Further, our current and
potential competitors may have significantly greditgancial, technical, manufacturing and marketiagources and greater access to
distribution channels than the Company. There eandiassurance that we will be able to competeesgtally with existing or potential
competitors.

Widespread consumer acceptance of lab-grown diargentstones is still developing. At this time, then@pany is aware that it may
be competing with companies that produce lab-grdimmond for industrial and gemstone markets, iralgidPure Grown Diamond/lla
Technologies, Washington Group, D’'Nea, Element &ird Sumitomo. We believe that as lab-grown diamzrdinues to gain widespread
commercial and consumer acceptance, the more ciiimp&tan be expected to increase. Increased catiopetould result in a decrease in the
price expected to be charged by the Company fodmmond or reduce demand for our diamond, whichld/bave a material adverse effect
on our business, operating results and financiadlition.

Our potential competitors in the gemstone diamawdistry may have significantly greater financiathnical, manufacturing and
marketing resources and greater access to distnbcahannels than the Company. Our competitorslikély include large multi-national
gemstone diamond companies as well as numerodsiptand development-stage gemstone diamond ahddkgy companies, some of
whom we may not be aware. We expect intense cotigredis we execute our business plan. It is beti¢kiat some of our existing and
potential competitors, as well as potential ensamito our market, have longer operating histolegier user bases, greater brand recognition
and significantly greater financial, marketing ater resources than the Company. Many of thesmnpat competitors may be able to devote
substantially greater resources to promotion aistesys development than we can. Barriers to devaopempetitive technology in our market
may not be sufficient and current and competitoay ive able to develop competing diamonds at aivelgtiow cost. Accordingly, we believe
that our success will depend heavily upon achiesiggificant market acceptance before our potentaipetitors introduce competing
products. There can be no assurance that we wabl®eto compete successfully with potential coribqest.

Rapid technological change will affect our busine:

Rapidly changing technology, industry standardshamg consumer demands and frequent new prodtrctidactions are expected to
define our market. Our market's early stage of tigyment may exacerbate these characteristics. @uref success will depend in significant
part on our ability to continuously improve the hyaof lab-grown diamond and our production cagiéibs in response to both the evolving
demands of the market and competitive product ioffist Efforts in these areas may not be successful.

We expect to have limited protection of our intaiteal property and proprietary rights.

We regard the patents, trade secrets and simikteotual property acquired via the Asset Purclasseritical to our success. We must
rely on patent law, trade secret protection andidentiality agreements with our employees, custemstrategic partners, advisors and others
to protect those proprietary rights. Such meastm@sgver, afford only limited protection, and weynmt be able to maintain the propriety
and/or confidentiality of the Diamond Technologyedpite these precautions, unauthorized third gantight use information that we regard as
proprietary to compete or help others to competh ug. There is no assurance that any of the egigi@tent applications or future patent
applications, if made, will be granted, or, if gieah will not be invalidated or circumvented, oattthe rights granted there under will provid:
with a competitive advantage. Any misappropriatibour proprietary information by third parties édunaterially adversely affect our
business. There can be no assurance that anypattesits issued will provide any significant comnmrprotection to the Company, that the
Company will have sufficient resources to prosedstpatents or that any patents will be uphelé@lmpurt should the Company seek to enforc
its respective rights against an infringer.
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There can be no assurances that:

« The scope of any patent protection will be effeztio exclude competitors or provide competitiveaadages to us;

« We will be able to commercially exploit any issystents before they expire;

« Any of the patents held will be held valid if sufgently challenged;

« Others will not claim rights in or ownership ofgtpatents and other proprietary rights acquirggraduced by the Company;
« Our diamond will not infringe, or be alleged torinfje, the proprietary rights of others; or

«  We will be able to protect meaningful rights in prietary technology over which the party does ratlpatents.

Furthermore, there can be no assurances that dtheesnot developed or will not develop diamondolihihay duplicate any of the
diamond produced using the Diamond Technology oreapected manufacturing processes, or those otfikrsot design around any of the
Company'’s patents. The existence of valid pateoés ot provide absolute prevention from other camigs independently developing
competing technologies. Existing producers of labmy-created diamond may refine existing proceksegrowing diamond or develop new
technologies for growing diamond in a manner theasdnot infringe any intellectual property rightslee Company.

Other parties may independently develop or othenaijuire substantially equivalent techniques, gagess to our acquired
proprietary technology or disclose such technoldgyddition, whether or not we obtain additionatemts, others may hold or receive patents
covering components of diamond we independentleldgvin the future. There can be no assurancegtindtparties will not claim
infringement by us, and seek substantial damagés respect to current or future diamond-relatetivaies. If we were to become involved in
a dispute regarding intellectual property, whethans or that of another company, we may becomedvedan material legal proceedings. Any
such claims, with or without merit, could be tim@asuming, result in costly litigation, cause pradslipment delays and require us to:

« Cease manufacturing and selling the product inttpreswhich could seriously harm us;
« Enter into royalty or licensing agreements; or
« Design commercially acceptable non-infringing altgive diamond.

There can be no assurances that we would be abl#tdo royalty or licensing agreements, if reqdjren terms acceptable to us or at
all, or that we would be able to develop commelgiatceptable non-infringing alternative diamontéieTailure to do so could have a material
adverse effect upon our business, financial camditbperating results and cash flows. We cannaibiselutely certain that the Diamond
Technology does not infringe issued patents orratitellectual property rights of others. In adaliti because patent applications in the United
States are not publicly disclosed until the paigigsued, applications may have been filed whidate to the Diamond Technology.

There can be no assurance that our business ditd tabproduce diamond will not be impaired byiola that we are infringing upon
the intellectual property of others. We may be sabjo future legal proceedings and claims fronettmtime in the ordinary course of our
business, including claims of alleged infringemeiithe trademarks and other intellectual propegkts of third parties. Intellectual property
litigation is expensive and time-consuming and daliVert the Company’s managemeamattention from diamond production and operating
business. As a result of the foregoing, the limjteatection of our acquired intellectual propeights and proprietary information could have &
material adverse effect on the Company’s busirgsssating results and financial condition.

Substantial governmental regulation may restrict oability to sell our lat-grown diamond.

Certain federal and state laws and regulations mothe testing, creation and sale of the typesahdnd we intend to produce. The
United States Federal Trade Commission (“FT&i)l other comparable regulatory authorities hedeimforeign countries may extensively i
rigorously regulate our Scio Diamond Materials,duct development activities and manufacturing pgees. In the United States, the FTC
regulates the introduction and labeling of gemstdinenond. We may be required to:

« Obtain clearance before we can market and seladdgrown diamond gemstones;

« Satisfy content requirements applicable to ourllaggesales and promotional materials;
« Comply with manufacturing and reporting requirenseand

« Undergo rigorous inspections.
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The process of obtaining marketing clearance far gemstone diamond from the FTC may prove costtytane consuming. The
FTC has neither approved nor prohibited the ugheferm “cultured” to describe the diamond the @any intends to sell as gemstones.
However, in December 2006, the Jewelers’ VigilaBoemittee submitted the Petition a petition (thetiffon”) to the FTC seeking
amendment to the Guides for the Jewelry, Precioetald, and Pewter Industries, 16 C.F.R. Part 28i(f€") to include the term “cultureds
a proscribed term to describe laboratory-creatathdnd. By opinion, dated July 21, 2008, the FTGeatbthe Petition finding it did not
demonstrate that the use of the term “culturedidscribe laboratory-created diamonds, when qudlfieone of the terms provided in the
Guides, is deceptive or unfair and declined to artbe Guides as requested by the Petition. The @oynpas not procured FTC clearance,
the FTC has not precluded the Company from setliagrond produced using the Diamond Technology. Be#g knowledge of the existing
limited sales of lalgrown diamond gemstones and however unlikely, thanebe no assurances that the FTC will not precihd Company, ¢
others similarly situated from marketing and selliab-grown diamond gemstones.

The FTC has the power to restrict the offer and sdiamond that could deceive or have the tendeneffect of misleading or
deceiving purchasers or prospective purchasersregthrd to the type, kind, quality, character, ealrigin or other characteristics of a
diamond gemstone. Under current guidelines issyetidbFTC, the Company is permitted to marketiggnbnd gemstones as “Scio-created,”
“lab-created diamond”, “laboratory created diamoériboratory grown diamond” or “cultured” so loras that term is accompanied by any of
the foregoing and such designations may inhibitkei@mg descriptions that are more favorable totamgaconsumer demand. We may come
under close scrutiny by governmental agencies raghasiry testing organizations and also by compstitothe gemstone industry, any of wr
may challenge our promotion and marketing of obfdeown diamond. If our production or marketinghallenged by governmental agencies
or competitors, or if regulations are issued tleatrict our ability to produce and market our labvgn diamond as “lab-grown diamond”, “lab-
created diamond”, or otherwise as a mined diamdtednative, our business, operating results anahfiial condition could be materially
adversely affected.

It is likely that our Scio Diamond Materials must@comply with similar laws and regulations ofdign countries in which we marl
such diamond. In general, the extent and comple@fitliamond disclosure regulation is increasingldwide. This trend may continue, and the
cost and time required to obtain marketing cleaganany given country may increase as a resuttulsht prove necessary, there can be no
assurances that our Scio Diamond Materials wilawbany necessary foreign clearances on a timedig bar at all. Our inability to satisfy
specific requirements for approval by domestic antireign regulatory agencies could materiallyerdely affect our ability to bring diamond
to market and generate revenue.

Federal, state, local and foreign laws and reguiat(especially those regarding approval of genestbamond) are always subject to
change and could have a material adverse effettteotesting and sale of our diamond and, therefarebusiness.

Regulatory authorities may limit our business indtfuture.

We will be subject to extensive regulatory requiesits. Government authorities can withdraw marketiegrance due to our failure
comply with regulatory standards or due to the a@sce of unforeseen problems following initialasignce. Ongoing regulatory requirements
are wide-ranging and govern, among other things:

« Product manufacturing;

« Annual inspections related to ISO certificatioroof quality system;
o  Supplier substitution;

« Product changes;

« Process modifications;

« The process of assuring origin of mine and/or patida of diamond;
« Lab-grown diamond gemstone reporting and disclosaand

« Product sales and distribution.

We expect that various government agencies magaisur facilities from time to time to determinéether we are in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. Additionalfyyve fail to comply or maintain compliance wittMis and regulations pertaining to diamonc
gemstones, regulatory authorities may fine us ardub from selling our lab-grown diamond gemstoifess regulatory agency believes we are
not in compliance with such laws or regulationsn#ty be able to:

« Seize our lab-grown diamond gemstones;

« Require a recall;

« Withdraw previously granted market clearances;

« Implement procedures to stop future violations;/and
« Seek civil and criminal penalties against us.
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Risks Related to an Investment in our Common Stock

An investment in the Company involves a high degoéeisk.

An investment in the Company is speculative andlves a high degree of risk, including the lossifinvestor’'s entire investment in
the Company. There is no guaranteed rate of retu@n investor’s investment in the Company, andetieeno assurance that investors will be
able to resell their shares for the amount thegl fii such shares or for any other amount. Investhould not invest in the Company unless
such investors can afford to lose their entire gtweent.

Recent settlement agreement resulted in restructiBoard of Directors and shareholder voting agreemi¢hat results in our directors an
officers controlling a large percentage of the Comny’s stock.

On June 23, 2014, the Company entered into a isettieagreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) byamdng Edward S. Adams,
Michael R. Monahan, Gerald McGuire, James KorncBruikly, Theodorus Strous, and Robert C. Linatlesir present and past affiliates, s
as Apollo Diamond, Inc., Apollo Diamond Gemstonawation, Adams Monahan LLP, Focus Capital Graop, and Oak Ridge Financial
Services Group, Inc., family members and spou$es‘ftidams Group”), and Thomas P. Hartness, Kristdflack, Paul Rapello, Glen R.
Bailey, Marsha C. Bailey, Kenneth L. Smith, BernstdMcPheely, James Carroll, Robert M. Daisley, Béolkowitz, Craig Brown, Ronnie
Kobrovsky, Lewis Smoak, Brian McPheely, Mark P. iSat the Sennott Family Charitable Trust, andrthéiliates (the “Save Scio Group”),
pursuant to which the Company and the Save Sciapsettled the previously pending consent conteshe election of directors. Pursuant to
the Settlement Agreement, on June 23, 2014, Me&desns, Strous, Linares and McGuire resigned a&sttirs effective immediately; the
Board expanded the size of the Board to 7 dire@ndsappointed Messrs. McPheely, Wolkowitz, Smaaklaeaverton (the “Save Scio
Nominee”) to fill all but one of the resulting vacancids.addition, the Company agreed to nominate eadfiesfsrs. Korn and Likly (the
“Adams Group Nominees”) and the Save Scio Nomiffieeslection to the Board at the Company’s 2014uahmeeting of stockholders.
Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the Adamasaad the Save Scio Group must vote their shdr€smmon Stock for the other’s
nominees for the next three years, and will alsehaplacement rights in the event these nomineesrable to serve as directors.

As of June 23, 2015, the Company had 57,516,49@sl common stock outstanding. As of the datihefSettlement Agreement,
the total number of shares subject to the votingegents related to the settlement agreement492,828 or approximately 30% of the
outstanding shares. Therefore, the Save Scio Gandgghe Adams Group collectively have consideratilaence to:

« Elect or defeat the election of our directors;

« Amend or prevent amendment of our Articles of lipooation or Bylaws;

. Effect or prevent a merger, sale of assets or athigrorate transaction; and

« Determine the outcome of any other matter submtitigtie stockholders for vote.

The limited ability of other stockholders to exaeeicontrol over the Company may adversely affecfuture market price for our
securities and the rights of our stockholders.

Provisions in our Articles of Incorporation and bgivs or Nevada law might discourage, delay or preva&ichange of control of us @
changes in our management and, therefore, deprédssttading price of the common stock.

Nevada corporate law and our Articles of Incorpioratind Bylaws contain other provisions that caliktourage, delay or prevent a
change in control of our Company or changes imasiagement that our stockholders may deem advantagéhese include provisions that:

« Deny holders of our common stock cumulative votiigfts in the election of directors, meaning thatkholders owning a
majority of our outstanding shares of common stoeitkbe able to elect all of our directol

« Require any stockholder wishing to properly bringatter before a meeting of stockholders to conagtis specified procedural
and advance notice requirements;

« Allow any vacancy on the Board of Directors, howethe vacancy occurs, to be filled by the directors
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There is a limited active public market for any ofir securities, which are not listed on any stockchange, and transfer of our securities is
restricted.

There is presently a limited active public marla@tdur securities, and there can be no assuraate tihading market will continue to
develop or, if developed, that it will be maintadn®ur common stock is not listed on any stock arge and it is currently quoted on the OTC
Bulletin Board and OTC PINK marketplace under ibker “SCIO”. We believe that we currently may matve enough stockholders or
outstanding shares to support an active trading@baeven if our common stock were listed on ageced trading exchange. There can be n
assurance that our investors will be able to reswsflof our securities at any price. The Compankesao representation to investors regardin
the value of its securities, and, particularlyight of the thin trading in the Company’s secustiading prices may or may not reasonably
reflect the intrinsic value, if any, of the Compangecurities.

We have been deemed to be a former shell compaagciordance with the Securities Act. As a result,slhares of common stock
may not be resold under Rule 144 of the Securki@except pursuant to Rule 144(i). Resales undae R44(i) generally require, that, in
addition to the normal Rule 144 requirements amdtditions: (1) we are subject to the reporting reroents of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the “Exchange Act”); (2) we have filed alld®Bange Act reports required for the past 12 morathd;(3) a minimum of one year has
elapsed since we filed current Form 10 informatiarForm 8-K changing our status from a shell conygara non-shell company. An
investment in the Company should be consideredg-ierm, illiquid investment, and investors shoidable to withstand a complete loss of
their investment.

Our Bylaws specifically provide that we shall netiiequired to effectuate the transfer of any shafesir common stock without first
receiving from the transferring stockholder (i)@inion of counsel satisfactory to the Company thptoposed transfer may be made lawfully
without the registration of such shares pursuathedSecurities Act of 1933, as amended (the “S&esiAct”), and applicable state securities
laws, or (ii) evidence that the shares proposdettransferred have been registered under the iBesuxct. The existence of the foregoing
restrictions may, therefore, adversely affect titarie market price for our securities and the ggiftour stockholders.

Future stock issuances could severely dilute ourreunt shareholders’ interests.

The future issuance of common stock may resultlition in the percentage of our common stock Hsidur existing shareholders.
Also, any stock we sell in the future may be valoadan arbitrary basis by us and the issuancearéshof common stock or preferred stock fo
future services, acquisitions or other corporateas may have the effect of diluting the valuahs shares held by our existing shareholders.

In addition, it is the Company’s current intenti@epending on the development of the businessaridrother factors) to raise
substantial additional capital during the fiscahiyending March 31, 2015, which we expect to raswubstantial dilution in the percentage of
our common stock held by our existing shareholders.

Any additional funding we arrange through the satéf our common stock will result in dilution to exting stockholder’ voting power and
may result in dilution to the book value per shaheld by existing stockholders.

We must raise additional capital in order for ousibess plan to succeed. A likely source of adddti@apital will be through the sale
of additional shares of common stock. Such stoskarces would cause stockholders’ voting inteiasisir Company to be diluted and may
cause the book value per share held by existirtkstdders to be diluted. Such dilution could negglti affect the value of investors’ shares.

We do not expect to pay cash dividends in the feezble future.

We are not obligated to pay dividends with respeciur capital stock, and we do not anticipatepgagment of cash dividends on our
capital stock in the foreseeable future. Any decisb pay dividends will depend upon our profitapiat the time, cash available, and other
factors; however, it is currently anticipated thay future profits received from operations willfie¢ained for operations. Therefore, no
assurance can be given that there will ever besanly cash dividend or distribution in the futurecérdingly, investors must rely on sales of
their capital stock after price appreciation, whiahy never occur, or a sale of our Company or atlmilar transaction as the only way to
realize a gain on their investment.

If we do not obtain additional financing, our busi&ss may fail

We anticipate that additional funding will be negdder general administrative expenses, operatirsscand marketing costs. There is
no guarantee that we will be able to raise theireduwash and because of this our business mayNailhave generated limited revenues from
operations to date. The specific cost requiremes¢sied to maintain operations depends upon theigiiod we are able to generate. If we are
not able to raise the capital necessary to fundaginess objectives, we may have to delay theemehtation of our business plan. Obtaining
additional funding will be subject to a number aétiors, including general market conditions, ineestcceptance of our business plan and
initial results from our business operations. THastors may impact the timing, amount, terms arditions of additional financing available
us. The most likely source of future funds avagatol us is through the sale of additional shareofmon stock. There is no guarantee that w
will be able to raise the funds required by the @any and, if we are not able to raise such furis) bur business may fail.
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Because our continuation as a going concern is iaubt, we may be forced to cease business operatimfsss we can generate profitak
operations in the future.

We will be incurring losses until we build a breaken level of revenue. Further losses are antetpmt the development of our
business. As a result, there is substantial ddodatiteour ability to continue as a going concernr ghility to continue as a going concern is
dependent upon our ability to generate profitalplerations in the future and/or to obtain the neagsinancing to meet our obligations and
repay our liabilities arising from normal busineggrations when they come due. We will require tattil funds in order to provide proper
service to our potential clients. At this time, eannot assure investors that we will be able taiolitnancing. If we are unable to raise needec
financing, we may have to delay or abandon furtiparations. If we cannot raise financing to meetahligations, we will be insolvent and
may be forced to cease our business operations.

If an active trading market for our common stock ds not sufficiently develop, stockholders may behile to sell their shares

There is currently a limited trading market for @@mmon stock and we can provide no assurance tsighificant market will
develop. Our common stock currently trades on tl€ Bulletin Board and the OTC PINK marketplace. ivay decide to apply for listing of
our common stock on a U.S. and/or foreign exchaHgerever, we can provide no assurances that weaply or that our common stock
would be accepted for listing on any stock exchaAgeordingly, we can provide investors with nowassice that our shares will be traded
U.S. and/or foreign exchange or, if traded, thsigaificant active public trading market will matdize. If no active trading market is ever
developed for our shares, it will be difficult fstockholders to sell their shares.

Our shares of common stock are subject to the “pgratock”rules of the SEC and the trading market in our sedies will be limited, which
will make transactions in our stock cumbersome améy reduce the value of an investment in our stock.

The SEC has adopted rules that regulate brokeedpedctices in connection with transactions innipestocks.” Penny stocks
generally are equity securities with a price ofldsn $5.00 (other than securities registeredeotaio national securities exchanges or quoted
on the NASDAQ system, provided that current pried wolume information with respect to transactionsuch securities is provided by the
exchange or system). Penny stock rules requirekebdealer, prior to a transaction in a pennylstuaat otherwise exempt from those rules, to
deliver a standardized risk disclosure documemamed by the SEC, which specifies information alpmiiny stocks and the nature and
significance of risks of the penny stock markebraker-dealer must also provide the customer witihalnd offer quotations for the penny
stock, the compensation of the broker-dealer, atesperson in the transaction, and monthly accstatéments indicating the market value of
each penny stock held in the customer’s accourgdttition, the penny stock rules require that,migca transaction in a penny stock not
otherwise exempt from those rules; the broker-deualest make a special written determination thatgenny stock is a suitable investment for
the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s writjeeeanent to the transaction. These disclosure negeints may have the effect of reducing
the trading activity in the secondary market farcktthat becomes subject to those penny stock. rfilagrading market for our common stock
develops, our common stock will probably becomgesttio the penny stock rules, and stockholders n@ase difficulty in selling their shares.

Significant deficiencies in our disclosure controtnd procedures or our failure to remediate suchfideencies could result in a materie
misstatement in our financial statements not beipgevented or detected and could affect investorfa@ence in the accuracy and
completeness of our financial statements, as wslloar common stock price.

We have identified significant deficiencies in aisclosure controls and procedures, including & tdcsufficient internal accounting
resources, necessary to ensure that adequate ref/@mw financial statements and notes theret@rfopmed, and have concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was néfeetive as of March 31, 2015. These significarfiaencies and our remediation plans are
described further in Item 9A. Deficiencies in oisdiosure controls and procedures could resultatenml misstatements in our financial
statements not being prevented or detected. Weexyagrience difficulties or delays in completing esfiation or may not be able to
successfully remediate significant deficienciesAfly material deficiency or unsuccessful remediatiould affect our ability to file periodic
reports on a timely basis and investor confidend@é accuracy and completeness of our finan@éstents, which in turn could harm our
business and have an adverse effect on our staxkgmd our ability to raise additional funds.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Disclosure under this item is not applicable beedhs Company is a smaller reporting company.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our corporate headquarters and production fadligylocated at 411 University Ridge, GreenvilleytBaCarolina. The production
facility includes approximately 3,200 square fedjpaing our headquarters office, and the facititserall has 9,470 square feet of space. We

have five years remaining on the lease for thigifac

Annual rental payments for the next five fiscal ngeir these facilities are as follows:

2016 $ 224,41(
2017 224 ,41(
2018 224,41(
2019 224 ,41(
2020 —
2021 and thereaftt $ —

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are subject, from time to time, to various ckitawsuits or actions that arise in the ordinanyrse of business. As of March 31,
2015 there were no material outstanding claimshbyGompany or against the Company.

In May 2014, the Company received a subpoena idsudise SEC ordering the provision of documents ratated information
concerning various corporate transactions betweeiCbmpany and its predecessors and other persdrentities. The Company is fully
cooperating with this ongoing inquiry.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLD ER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTAdim Board and OTC PINK marketplace under thedic5CIO”. Because we
are quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, our commaulsts less liquid, may receive less coverage by analysts and news media, and
generate lower prices than might otherwise be pbthif it were listed on a national securities exuie. The OTC Bulletin Board prices are
guotations, which reflect inter-dealer prices witheetail mark-up, mark-down, or commissions ang mat represent actual transactions.

The following table sets forth the quarterly higiddow bid prices for our common stock for the &isgears ending March 31, 2014
and 2015, as reported by the OTC Bulletin BoaraseEhquotations reflect inter-dealer prices, withretdil mark-up, markdown, or
commission, and may not represent actual transectio

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 201« High Low

First Fiscal Quarte $ 1.0C $ 0.31
Second Fiscal Quart 0.5¢ 0.1t
Third Fiscal Quarte 0.51 0.2¢€
Fourth Fiscal Quarte 0.4C 0.1t
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 201! High Low

First Fiscal Quarte $ 0.7t $ 0.22
Second Fiscal Quart 0.5t 0.3z
Third Fiscal Quarte 0.97 0.2¢
Fourth Fiscal Quarte 1.42 0.8C

As of June 23, 2015, there were 57,516,499 shdiresnomon stock outstanding held by approximatel§ @ckholders of record.
Dividends

We have not declared or paid any cash dividendsuortommon stock since our inception, and we ddmend to declare cash
dividends for the foreseeable future. Any decismpay dividends will depend upon our profitabiléythe time, cash available, and other
factors; however, it is currently anticipated thay future profits received from operations willfe¢ained for operations.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securit

Unless otherwise indicated, the issuances of aurges listed below were made in reliance onxamgption from registration under
Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act, as we reabbnbelieved that the investors were sophisticatest no general solicitations were involved
and the transactions did not otherwise involve lipwffering.

At the request of the then Board of Directors,@menpany entered into an agreement, effective A@;il2014, with Mr. Joseph
Cunningham to provide consulting services to thenfany. Under this agreement, the Company agrepbtade Mr. Cunningham $4,000 a
20,000 shares of common stock per month in exchiorgas professional services to the Company. Thistract expired in August 2014.
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, then@any issued 80,000 shares to Mr. Cunningham. T$teemes were valued at an average ¢
$0.43 per share based on the closing prices daftthees on the dates of grant and the Company reesh$34,200 in professional and
consulting fee expense for these shares durinfiste year ended March 31, 2015.

On June 20, 2014, the then Board of Directors grhrgstricted stock grants to Mr. Michael Laub @f0®0 shares for previously
performed services rendered to the Company. WhdeCiompany did not recognize expense for thisiogstr stock grant since it was in
exchange for expenses previously accrued by thep@oyn the shares provided Mr. Laub were valued&4per share.

On July 15, 2014, the Board of Directors approvedissuance and sale of up to 2,000,000 shareswhon stock to accredited
investors at a price of $0.30. On September 254 2t Board agreed to increase the size of theinff up to 6,666,667 shares to raise up to
$2,000,000. The Company completed the offering endbnber 23, 2014 and issued 6,666,664 shares ohoprstock, at a price of $0.30 per
share, for total cash proceeds of $2,000,000.
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On October 30, 2014, the Board of Directors appidhe issuance of 50,000 shares to Bradley Robkbttte $15,000 of liabilities for
services rendered to the Company. Also on this, dateBoard approved the issuance of 95,522 sldusiock to an affiliate of our landlord to
settle $28,657 of outstanding rent liabilities. Hiares issued in each of these transactions wa&redsat $0.30 per share.

On March 12, 2015, the Board of Directors appravedissuance of 333,333 shares to Neil Koppeltites&100,000 of liabilities for
inventory provided to the Company. The shares ssu¢his transaction were valued at $0.30 perestthe closing price of our stock on the
date the inventory was acquired.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
Not applicable.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussion in confiamcwith the financial statements of the Compamg the notes to those
statements, included elsewhere in this Form 10sdyell as the rest of this Annual Report on ForrKLO he statements in this discussion
regarding outlook, our expectations regarding outufe performance, liquidity and capital resour@asl other non-historical statements in
this discussion are forward-looking statements.sehferwardlooking statements are subject to numerous riskisiantertainties, including, b
not limited to, the risks and uncertainties desedbn the “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Notice Ragling Forward Looking Statements”
sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Ouwuatresults may differ materially from those can&l in or implied by any forward-
looking statements.

GENERAL
Corporate History

We were incorporated on September 17, 2009 in thie $f Nevada under the name Krossbow Holdingp&@ation (“Krossbow”).
Krosshow did not implement its original businesanpdnd decided to acquire existing technology &k $e efficiently and effectively produce
man-made diamond. In connection with this chandausiness purpose, Krossbow changed its name doC8amond Technology Corporation
to reflect its new business direction.

On August 5, 2011, Edward S. Adams and Michael Bn&dhan acquired control of the Company througlptitehase of shares of the
Company’s issued and outstanding common stock frason Kropp, Krossbow’s sole director and executffieer at that time.
Messrs. Monahan and Adams served on the CompamgedBf Directors until their resignations form @eard on June 30, 2013, and June
23, 2014, respectively. Additionally, on Augus2B]11, the Company executed an Asset Purchase Agrdemith another privately-held
Nevada corporation that also had the ni“Scio Diamond Technology Corporation” (“Private 89i Under the terms of the Asset Purchase
Agreement, the Company purchased the name “Scim@id Technology Corporation” and acquired othentsgrom Private Scio for
13,000,000 newly issued shares of common stodkeo€ompany.

On August 31, 2011, the Company acquired certaata®f ADI, consisting primarily of diamond grogimachines and intellectual
property related thereto, for which the Companyl g&D| an aggregate of $2,000,000. In connectiom it ADI Asset Purchase, the
Company also agreed to provide certain currenffamder stockholders of ADI qualifying as accreditedestors the opportunity to acquire up
to approximately 16 million shares of common stotkhe Company for $0.01 per share.

On June 5, 2012, the Company acquired substantitllbf the assets of ADGC, consisting primarilylab-grown diamond gemstone-
related know-how, inventory, and various intellettproperty, in exchange for $100,000 in cash &edpportunity for certain current and
former stockholders of ADGC qualifying as accredlitevestors to acquire up to approximately 1 millghares of common stock of the
Company for $0.01 per share.

In December 2011, the Company began a build-oiis @reenville, South Carolina production facili§onstruction was largely
completed in March 2012 and equipment was movead #®I's former facility in Massachusetts to Southr@lina over the first calendar
quarter of 2012. The Company began initial produrctvith ten diamond growing machines in July 20Q@r initial production was focused on
industrial cutting tool products supplied to a $#ingustomer. Since March 2013, the Company hasnebquhits product focus to include
gemstone diamond material.
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On September 16, 2013, the Company entered intGthee Rich Agreements to form a joint venture wiplerations in the People’s
Republic of China to deploy at least 100 Scio desidiamond growing machines. Under the Grace Rggeements, the Company has agi
to license its proprietary technology for the matfire of diamond gemstones of agreed upon spatiifics. In exchange for the license, the
Company will receive licensing and development neseand a 30% ownership position in the joint ventin addition to the licensed
technology, the Grace Rich Agreements include akibgs for the Company to provide and be compeddatetechnology consulting services
to the joint venture to support the start-up ofragiens. The Company is not required to make angaing funding contributions to the joint
venture and its ownership stake cannot be reduoad 30%.

On December 16, 2014, the Company entered intGtherer Sale-Lease Agreement with HGI. PursuarthéoGrower Sale-Lease
Agreement, the Company agreed to a sale-leasebarigament for certain diamond growers producethbyCompany during the term of the
Grower Sale-Leaseback Agreement by which the Cosnpalhsell diamond growers to HGI and then ledse growers back from HGI. The
direct profit margin generated from the growerd fd split between the Company and HGI in accordamith the Grower Sale-Lease
Agreement. The Grower Sale-Lease Agreement reqtiiee€ompany to operate and service the growedstexquires HGI to up-fit certain
existing growers and to make capital improvememtsié new growers under certain circumstances Cidmapany will also have the right to
repurchase the leased growers upon the occurrémegtain events.

On December 18, 2014 entered into an arrangemémiReinaissance creating RCDC. The Company and &samaie are each 50%
members of RCDC. The arrangement was enterednirdgader to facilitate the development of proceduned recipes for, and to market and
sell, lab-grown fancy-colored diamonds. RCDC wilkghase rough diamond material from the Companypaocess and finish the material
into finished gemstones for sale to various retsitand other participants in the market for gemessoRrofits generated by RCDC's operations
will be distributed between the Company and Reaaiss according to the terms of the LLC Agreement.

Business Overvie

The Company’s primary mission is the developmergrofitable and sustainable commercial productibitsodiamond materials,
which are suitable for known, emerging and anti@gandustrial, technology and consumer applicatidie Company intends to pursue
progressive development of its core diamond mdsstéghnologies and related intellectual propergt the Company hopes will evolve into
product opportunities across various applicatidve.believe these opportunities may be monetizedgh@ combination of end product sales,
joint ventures and licensing arrangements witrdtparties, and through continued development efletttual property. Anticipated applicati
opportunities for the Company’s diamond materiatdude the following: precision cutting devicesamiond gemstone jewelry, power
switches, semiconductor processors, optoelectrog@&ssciences, water purification, and MRI and iothedical science technology.

While the Company product offering continues tdude industrial products, as of March 31, 2015 lyealt of the Company’s
production capacity is being sold as gemstone riadgeAs of March 31, 2015, we had generated $32Z82in net revenue since inception
from sales of our diamond materials and licensihgus technology. To date, over 50% of our prochas been sold overseas and 100% of
these sales have been to external customers ana joint venture partners as discussed in IteM@TES 10 and 11. We expect continued
development of an international market for our ddach materials.

See Part |, Item 1. (Business) for additional infation regarding our business.
Significant Partner Agreements

On September 16, 2013, the Company entered intGthee Rich Agreements to form a joint venture wiplerations in the People’s
Republic of China to deploy at least 100 Scio desigdiamond growing machines. Under the Grace Rggeements, the Company has agi
to license its proprietary technology for the mautfire of diamond gemstones of agreed upon spatidfics. In exchange for the license, the
Company will receive licensing and development neseand a 30% ownership position in the joint vemtin addition to the licensed
technology, the Grace Rich Agreements include akibgis for the Company to provide and be compeddatetechnology consulting services
to the joint venture to support the start-up ofragiens. The Company is not required to make angaing funding contributions to the joint
venture and its ownership stake cannot be reduced 30%.

On December 16, 2014, the Company entered intGtherer Sale-Lease Agreement with HGI. PursuarthéoGrower Sale-Lease
Agreement, the Company agreed to a sale-leasebarigament for certain diamond growers producethbyCompany during the term of the
Grower Sale-Leaseback Agreement by which the Cosnpalhsell diamond growers to HGI and then ledse growers back from HGI. The
direct profit margin generated from the growerd bd split between the Company and HGI in accordawith the Grower Sale-Lease
Agreement. The Grower Sale-Lease Agreement reqtiiee€ompany to operate and service the growedstexquires HGI to up-fit certain
existing growers and to make capital improvememtsié new growers under certain circumstances Cidmapany will also have the right to
repurchase the leased growers upon the occurrémegtain events.

24




On December 18, 2014 entered into an arrangemémiReinaissance creating RCDC. The Company and &samaie are each 50%
members of RCDC. The arrangement was enterednirdader to facilitate the development of proceduned recipes for, and to market and
sell, lab-grown fancy-colored diamonds. RCDC wilkghase rough diamond material from the Companypaocess and finish the material
into finished gemstones for sale to various retsitand other participants in the market for gemesoRrofits generated by RCDC's operations
will be distributed between the Company and Reaaiss according to the terms of the LLC Agreement.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have adopted various accounting policies thaegothe application of accounting principles gatigraccepted in the United
States (“GAAP”). We describe our significant acctog policies in the notes to our audited finansi@tements as of March 31, 2015.

Some of the accounting policies involve significartigments and assumptions by us that have a rakitepact on the carrying value
of our assets and liabilities. We consider thes@aating policies to be critical accounting pol&i&he judgment and assumptions we use are
based on historical experience and other fact@tsvile believe to be reasonable under the circurostaBecause of the nature of the judgn
and assumptions we make, actual results couldrdifien these judgments and estimates and couldriaiyeaffect the carrying values of our
assets and liabilities and our results of operation

The following is a summary of the more significardgmental estimates and complex accounting priesjpvhich represent our
critical accounting policies.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize product revenue when persuasive esédefnan arrangement exists, delivery of produatsdtcurred, the sales price is
fixed or determinable, and collectability is reaaloly assured. For our Company, this generally m#ésatsve recognize revenue when we or
our fabrication vendor has shipped finished prodo¢he customer. Our sales terms do not allovafoght of return except for matters related
to any manufacturing defects on our part.

For product sales to our joint venture partnersfdiother processing and finishing, we currentlyededll revenues when products
shipped. We currently recognize revenue when tim yenture partner sells the finished goods mastufad from our materials. Licensing i
development revenues are recognized in the montetsled in appropriate licensing and developnoamitracts. In the event that licens
funds are received prior to the contractual committhThe Company will recognize deferred reveniabi(lty) for the amount received.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of average amostarket. The carrying value of inventory is mwved and adjusted based upon slov
moving and obsolete items. Inventory costs inclundgerial, labor, and manufacturing overhead andletermined by the “first-in, first-
out” (FIFO) method. The components of inventoriegude raw materials and supplies, work in proegssfinished good.

The Company has periodically experienced sellingegrthat were lower than cost and as a resultdwasded a lower of cost or
market write down to the value of our inventory eTéstimation of the total write-down to inventonydlves management judgments and
assumptions, including assumptions regarding fugeténg price forecasts, the estimated costs toptete and disposal costs.

Property, Plant and Equipme

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment isa@traight-line basis beginning at the time fileced in service, based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Years
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Furniture and fixture 3-10
Engineering equipmel 5-12
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated at therleb#ige remaining term of the lease or the lifétaf asset (generally three to sever
years).

Expenditures for major renewals and bettermentsekignd the useful lives of property and equipnagatcapitalized. Expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged to ex@enseurred.

Intangible Asset

Intangible assets, such as acquired in-procesandsand development (“IPRD”) costs, are considévdthve an indefinite useful life
until such time as they are put into service atolvtiime they will be amortized on a straidinie basis over the shorter of their economic gal
useful life. Management'’s estimate of useful lifeany patents when placed in service is a crifiedgiment. Management evaluates indefinite
life intangible assets for impairment on an anrzis and on an interim basis if events or chamgeiscumstances between annual impairr
tests indicate that the asset might be impaired.drtgoing evaluation for impairment of its indetiéniife intangible assets requires significant
management estimates and judgment. Managementuedigfinite life intangible assets for impairmeritamever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouincésset may not be recoverable.

A substantial portion of the Company’s patent mditfis considered in service due to the inheretie of the patents to our on-going
manufacturing operations. Through March 31, 20&,Gompany has allocated $8,135,063 to patentatbdieing amortized over a period
ranging from 6.75 years to 19.46 years corresp@nttirtheir remaining life.

The Company continues to classify the remainingmgtortfolio as IPRD and believes that the IPRB dlgernative future use and
value. Applicable accounting guidance requiresnaeiinite life for IPRD assets until such time lhe tommercialization can be reasonably
estimated, at which time the assets will be avil&dy their intended use. At such time as thosgirements are met, we believe that
consideration of the legal life of the intellectpabperty protection should be of considerable irtgpae in determining the useful life. Upon
commercialization and determination of the usefaldf the intellectual property assets, considerawill be given to the eventual expiratior
the intellectual property rights underlying certaiitical aspects of our manufacturing process.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015 Compared to tlsedliYear Ended March 31, 20

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, wemed net revenue of $726,193, compared to $1,4188net revenue during the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2014. A portion of thésrease is due to the Company receiving $375r0ensing fees from the Grace Rich
joint venture during the fiscal year ended MarchZ115, while we received $625,000 in the prioliguerThe Company does not anticip
receiving any additional licensing revenues from @race Rich joint venture until it is expectedé&ooperational during calendar year 2016.
Product revenues for the fiscal year ended Mar¢t2815 were $351,193 versus $793,341 in the peaog. The Company deferred $215,375
in product revenues for sales to the RCDC jointwenduring the fiscal year ended March 31, 201 fiemaining reduction in revenue is due
to reduced product sales and lower product priceisd the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

Cost of goods sold was $1,497,465 for the fiscal ymded March 31, 2015 versus $2,321,534 foriskalfyear ended March 31,
2014. The Company deferred costs related to defeeneenue from sales to the RCDC joint venturelof®969 during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2015. Cost of goods sold includes diaect indirect labor costs of $397,767 during thediyear ended March 31, 2015 and
$577,200 during the fiscal year ended March 31420kpreciation expense of $603,604 and $683,5&raeorded in cost of goods sold
during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015 aridi 2fespectively. The overall decrease in cosbofdg sold was due to reduced product
sales, increased deferred costs, reduced depoegiatid lower labor expenses included in cost ofigesold during the fiscal year ended Me
31, 2015 versus the year ended March 31, 2014.

We incurred a net amount of $566,154 in professiand consulting fees during the fiscal year enilliedch 31, 2015. This amount
includes reductions of $343,556 related to thensaleof expenses from the Settlement Agreementaaneduction of $168,015 for payments
made for legal fees from the prior fiscal year by imsurance carrier. Without these adjustmentsfegsional and consulting fees were
$1,077,725 compared to $1,272,212 for the fiscat yded March 31, 2014. This reduction of $194j48argely due to reduced legal fees.
Salary and benefit expenses recognized as genmetaldministrative expenses were $821,272 and $023i8ring the fiscal years ended Ma
31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This increase@{467 is the result of the Company recognizings$3D7 in executive severance offset by
reductions in compensation expense during thelfiger ended March 31, 2015 versus the fiscal gaded March 31, 2014.
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The other components of our general and adminigtrakpenses were relatively consistent betweeffisbal year ended March 31,
2015 and 2014. Rent, equipment lease and facibtipenses were $145,252 and $150,502, respectimelfketing costs were $59,727 and
$49,216, respectively; depreciation and amortira¢iopenses were $798,477 and $799,928, respectarelycorporate general and
administrative expenses were $345,263 and $37985@ectively.

The Company reached an agreement with a formel $egéces provider that allowed the Company ttiseutstanding past legal
fees from prior fiscal years. This settlement 06%453 was recorded as forgiveness of legal acsqaytable during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2015.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, mamege evaluated intangible assets included in IPRdDdetermined that certain
projects will no longer be pursued for further depenent resulting in an impairment charge of $468,62cognized during the period. There
were no impairment charges during the fiscal yeaied March 31, 2014.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, thenGany evaluated fixed assets acquired from ADIdispgosed of obsolete
equipment with a book value of $162,609 and adsdtsfor sales of $20,000. The Company made aairaifaluation in the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2014 that resulted in a loss on dispoftked assets of $129,308 and an impairmenbadiassets charge of $381,798 during that
fiscal year.

We have continued to generate limited revenuefsebbur expenses, and so we have incurred netdo€air net loss for fiscal year
ended March 31, 2015 was $4,141,653, compareché&d loss of $4,950,953 during the fiscal year erddadch 31, 2014. Our net loss per st
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 was $(0p@8 share, compared to a net loss per sharddf®(for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2014. The weighted average number of shares odistawas 53,025,462 and 49,548,045, for the figealts ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
respectively.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

At March 31, 2015, we had total assets of $12,Z8dmpared to total assets of $12,850,139 at Mat¢c2014. This decrease in
assets was primarily related to write downs andetggtion of fixed assets and impairment chargelsaanortization of intangibles, more than
offsetting increases in current assets. We had @a$h67,214 at March 31, 2015 compared to $478@8d@arch 31, 2014. This increase is due
to the Company increasing its borrowings on iteagtayable and proceeds from common stock salédasth 31, 2015 the Company’s
accounts receivables had increased by $201,844Ntarnh 31, 2014. This increase is due to outstantéoeivables from RCDC. At March .
2015, the Company had deferred $179,969 of cont@stt related to deferred revenues from saldset®ECDC joint venture. There we no
deferred contract costs at March 31, 2014. Theeas® in inventory of $142,943 was primarily duigher finished goods inventory includi
gemstone materials of $70,664 and higher diamoed s&terial included in raw material and supplie$22,847.

Total liabilities at March 31, 2015 were $4,098, €6npared to total liabilities of $2,920,722 at kfaB1, 2014. This increase is
largely the result of the Company’s borrowings unmlg notes payable and deferred revenue from salR€DC during the year ended March
31, 2015.

The Company had positive working capital (definectarrent assets less current liabilities) of $86,2t March 31, 2015 versus
$(2,402,369) at March 31, 2014. The most substactienge in working capital was due to the Compamgfinancing of short-term notes
payable into long-term notes payable. This refiiagnemproved the working capital of the Companydiy412,060. Beyond this refinancing,
the major reason for the improvement in workingitzdpvas the increase in borrowing on our long-termtes payable and our sale of common
stock that provided the Company additional casbuess.

Total shareholders’ equity was $8,132,622 at M&th2015, compared to $9,929,417 at March 31, 28lhdreholders’ equity
decreased during the year primarily due to contiguiet losses increasing the Company’s accumutkficit more than offsetting increase in
additional paid in capital from our common stockeahgs.

CASH FLOWS
Operating Activities

The Company has not generated positive cash flows dperating activities. For the year ended M&th2015, net cash flows used
in operating activities were $(2,131,217) comparcefi(1,364,820) for the year ended March 31, 20h4. net cash flow used in operating
activities for the year ended March 31, 2015 cdaagismarily of a net loss of $(4,141,653) offsgtdepreciation and amortization of
$1,476,916, loss on disposal of equipment of $1@2,Bss on impairment of in-process research awveldpment of $418,065, expenses for
stock issued in exchange for services of $77,88®|@yee stock based compensation of $155,000, inaufr$(29,041) from joint venture, an
increase in current assets of $(157,706) and adserin current and other liabilities of $(113,265)
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Investing Activitie:

For the year ended March 31, 2015, net cash fl@es in investing activities were $(237,496), caivsisprimarily of the purchases
property, plant, and equipment. Net cash flows uséavesting activities were $(71,889) for the yeaded March 31, 2014. This increase is
due to the Company'’s purchases of fixed assethéexpansion of its production facility during $ear ended March 31, 2015.

Financing Activities

We have financed our operations primarily throudhieacements or the issuance of equity and debtimsints. For the years ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, we generate@B$3040 and $1,261,439 from financing activitiespectively. The cash generated du
the year ended March 31, 2015 was primarily fromgale of common stock and the net additional bangs on the Company’s note payable
facility.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We expect that working capital requirements wilhttoue to be funded through a combination of ousténg funds, further issuances
of securities, and future credit facilities or corgte borrowings. Our working capital requiremeares expected to increase in line with the
growth of our business.

As of March 31, 2015, our cash balance was $767,21i4 amount is not expected to be adequate t dum operations over the next
fiscal year ending March 31, 2016. As of March 3215, we had no additional lines of credit or oth@nk financing arrangements other than
as described in Item 8, NOTE 3. Generally, we Haanced operations through March 31, 2015 thrahghproceeds of sales of our common
stock and borrowings under our existing creditlfiees. The Company is pursuing additional issuarmfeequity capital to meet operating cash
requirements.

Additional issuances of equity or convertible detturities will result in dilution to our currertbskholders. Such securities might
have rights, preferences or privileges senior tocommon stock. Additional financing may not beitalde upon acceptable terms, or at all. If
adequate funds are not available or are not avaitabacceptable terms, we may not be able toadkentage of prospective new business
endeavors or opportunities, which could signifitaand materially restrict our business operatiang could result in the shutdown of
operations.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

On September 16, 2013, the Company entered intGthee Rich Agreements with SAAMABA, LLC and S21sRarch Holdings to
form a joint venture with operations in the PeaplRepublic of China to deploy Scio designed diamgnaaving machines. Under the Grace
Rich Agreements, the Company has agreed to lidgémpeoprietary technology for the manufacture iaihgond gemstones of agreed upon
specifications. In exchange for the license, then@any received licensing and development revendeaaninority ownership position in the
joint venture. In addition to the licensed techmyiothe Grace Rich Agreements include obligatiamgtie Company to provide and
compensated for technology consulting servicebégdint venture to support the start-up of opersi

On December 16, 2014, the Company entered intgeeement for the sale and lease of growers with. IP@tsuant to the Grower
Sale-Lease Agreement, the Company agreed to desaleback arrangement for certain diamond groweduged by the Company during the
term of the Grower Sale-Leaseback Agreement by wtiie Company will sell diamond growers to HGI &nein lease the growers back from
HGI. The direct profit margin generated from thewers will be split between the Company and HGdénordance with the Grower Sale-
Lease Agreement. The Grower Sale-Lease Agreemguires the Company to operate and service the gspwad requires HGI to up-fit
certain existing growers and to make capital imprognts to the new growers under certain circumetarikhe Company will also have the
right to repurchase the leased growers upon thercame of certain events.

On December 18, 2014 entered into an arrangemémtRe@naissance creating RCDD. The Company and Bsaraie are each 50%
members of RCDC. The arrangement was enterednirdgader to facilitate the development of proceduned recipes for, and to market and
sell, lab-grown fancy-colored diamonds. RCDC wiltghase rough Diamond material from the Companymadess and finish the material
into finished gemstones for sale to various retsitand other participants in the market for gemesoRrofits generated by RCDC's operations
will be distributed between the Company and Reaaiss according to the terms of the LLC Agreement.
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As of the date of this Annual Report, we do notéhamy off-balance sheet arrangements that have seasonably likely to have a
current or future effect on our financial conditi@manges in financial condition, revenues or egpsnresults of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources that are materialvestors.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.

Not required because the Company is a smaller tiegazompany.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING-IRM
To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of Scio Diamond Technology Corporation

We have audited the accompanying balance she&si@Diamond Technology Corporation (the “Compargg)of March 31, 2015 and 2014,
and the related statements of operations, shamesolequity, and cash flows for the years then dndilae Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements. Oyraesibility is to express an opinion on these fgiahstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigramdit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Scio Diamond
Technology Corporation as of March 31, 2015 and42@hd the results of its operations and its clstsffor the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have begraprd assuming that the Company will continue ggimg concern. As discussed in No
to the financial statements, the Company has g@tklianited revenue, incurred net losses and irclnegative operating cash flows since
inception and will require additional financingftond the continued development of products. Thélavitity of such financing cannot be
assured. These conditions raise substantial ddadhttds ability to continue as a going concernnisigement’s plans regarding those matters
also are described in Note 1. The financial stateméo not include any adjustments that might tésuin the outcome of this uncertainty.

/sl Cherry Bekaert LLP

Greenville, South Carolina

June 29, 2015
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ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivabl
Other receivable
Deferred contract cos
Inventory
Prepaid expenst
Prepaid rent

Total current asse

Property, plant and equipme
Facility
Manufacturing equipmer
Other equipmer
Construction in progress

Total property, plant and equipme
Less accumulated depreciation

Net property, plant and equipme

Intangible assets, n

Prepaid rent, noncurre
Investment in joint ventur- RCDC
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Notes payabli
Accounts payabl
Customer deposit
Deferred revenu
Accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

Notes payable, n-current
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 75,000,000 shartb®azed; 56,531,499 and 50,739,312 shares

SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS
As of March 31, 2015 and 2014

issued and outstanding at March 31, 2015 and 2@$pectively

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici

Treasury stock, no and 1,000,000 shares at MarcBA®b and 2014, respectively

Total stockholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS

' EQUITY

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014

$ 767,21 $ 47,98%
243,92¢ 42,08¢
— 89,19:
179,96¢ —
295,76( 152,81
57,01 79,07¢
23,05( 23,05(
1,566,93. 434,20¢
904,81 899,49¢
2,927,76 3,171,65!
71,05¢ 71,05¢
207,25. —
4,110,88! 4,142,21.
(1,543,65) (1,029,21)
2,567,23: 3,113,00:
8,047,94: 9,240,64!
19,23¢ 42,28¢
30,04: —
— 20,00(

$ 12,231,39 $ 12,850,13
$ — 3% 1,412,006
708,76( 671,78:
38,60: 179,61(
215,37! —
517,94 573,12t
1,480,68! 2,836,57:
2,500,001 —
118,09: 84,14
4,098,77. 2,920,722
56,53: 50,73¢
26,815,00 24,476,94
(18,738,91) (14,597,26)
— (1,000
8,132,62. 9,929,41

$ 12,231,39 $ 12,850,13

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statement
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SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

Revenue
Product revenue, n
Licensing revenue

Revenues, net

Cost of goods solc
Cost of goods sold

Gross margin (deficit)

General and administrative expense
Professional and consulting fe
Salaries and benefi
Rent, equipment lease and facilities expe
Marketing cost:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Corporate general and administrat
Forgiveness of legal accounts paye
Loss on impairment of -process research and developn
Loss on disposal of equipme
Loss on impairment of fixed assets

Total general and administrative expen

Loss from operations

Other income (expense
Income from joint ventur— RCDC
Interest expense

Net loss

Loss per share
Basic:
Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Loss per share

Fully diluted:
Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Loss per share

Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
$ 351,190 $ 793,34
375,00( 625,00(

726,19: 1,418,34
1,497,46! 2,321,53.
(771,277 (903,19)

566,15 1,272,21.

821,27. 723,80!

145,25: 150,50:

59,721 49,21¢

798,47 799,92¢

345,26 379,55:

(165,45 —

418,06 —

182,60¢ 129,30t

— 381,79¢

3,171,361 3,886,32
(3,942,63) (4,789,51)

29,04 —
(228,05f) (161,439
$ (4,141,65) $ (4,950,95)
53,025,46 49,548,004
$ (0.0 $ (0.10
53,025,46 49,548,04
$ (0.0¢) $ (0.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash irsegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Loss on disposal of equipme
Loss on impairment of fixed asst
Loss on impairment of -process research and developn
Expense for stock and inventory issued in exchdoigeperating expenst
Income from joint ventur— RCDC
Employee stock based compensa
Inventory write dowr

Changes in assets and liabiliti
Decrease in accounts receiva
Decrease/(increase) in other receival
Decrease/(increase) in prepaid expenses, rentthed asset
Decrease/(increase) in inventc
Increase in accounts payal
(Decrease)/increase in customer dept
Decrease in accrued expen
Increase in other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activitie

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equiprr
Investment in joint venture — RCDC

Net cash used in investing activitie

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common st net of fees
Proceeds from notes payal
Finance charges paid on note pay:
Payments on notes payable

Net cash provided by financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivals
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of peric

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, March 31,
2015 2014

$ (4,141,65) $ (4,950,95)

1,476,911 1,574,41
182,60¢ 129,30¢
— 381,79
418,06 —
77,85¢ 421,49
(29,047) —
155,00 193,15
68,72: 100,55°
13,53: 26,95’
89,19: (89,197
(37,51 44.,26(
(291,63, 258,12!
36,97¢ 386,13
(141,007 179,61(
(43,189 (54,436
33,94¢ 33,94¢
(2,131,21) (1,364,82)
(236,49)) (71,889
(1,000) —
(237,49 (71,889
2,000,001 12¢
2,653,61! 1,412,06
— (150,75()
(1,565,67)) _
3,087,941 1,261,43
719,22° (175,270)
47,98 223,25

$ 767,21 $ 47,98;

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.

(continued)
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SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

(Continued)
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014
Supplemental cash flow disclosures
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest $ 84,16¢ $ 18,87«
Income taxes $ — 3 —
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Payment of accounts payable and accrued expentesammon stock $ 112,00 $ 81,76
Manufacturing equipment transferred to assets toeldale $ — 3 20,00(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

Additional
Common Stock Paid in Treasury Stock Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Deficit Total

Balance, April 1, 2013 47,736,81 $ 47,737 $23,789,47 (1,000,000 $ (1,000 $ (9,646,30) $14,189,90
Common stock issued in exchange for consultingices 1,002,501 1,00z 318,19¢ — — — 319,20(
Common stock issued in exchange for past legalcsees 1,000,00t 1,00 163,00( — — — 164,00(
Administrative fee received for previous stock e&ste — — 12¢ — — — 12¢
Common stock issued for indemnification of legatlsenent 1,000,00t 1,00 (1,000 — — — —
Employee stock based compensa — — 193,15( — — — 193,15(
Warrants issued in exchange for consulting sen — — 13,98! — — — 13,98t
Net loss for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2 — — — — — (4,950,95) (4,950,95)
Balance, March 31, 201« 50,739,31 50,73¢ 24,476,94 (1,000,001) (2,000 (14,597,26) 9,929,41

Common stock issued in exchange for operating esgzeand
inventory 558,85t 55¢ 177,29¢ — — — 177,85¢
Common stock issued in exchange for past consusgngces 50,00( 50 11,95( — — — 12,00(
Retirement of treasury stor (2,000,001 (2,000 — 1,000,00t 1,00 — —
Common stock issued for cash @ $0.30 per € 6,666,66 6,661 1,993,33 — — — 2,000,00
Common stock returned to Company and canci (1,000,001 (2,000 1,00( — — — —
Employee stock based compensa 516,66 517 154,48: — — — 155,00(
Net loss for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 — — — — — (4,141,65) (4,141,65)
Balance, March 31, 201! 56,531,49 $ 56,53 $26,815,00 — $ — $(18,738,91) $ 8,132,622

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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NOTE 1— ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINS POLICIES

Organization and Business

Scio Diamond Technology Corporation (referred teefreas the “Company”, “we”, “us” or “our”) was ingporated under the laws of
the State of Nevada as Krossbow Holding Corp. grieé®aeber 17, 2009. The Company’s focus is on manendgamond technology
development and commercialization.

Going Concern

The Company has generated little revenue to dateamnsequently its operations are subject to skkrinherent in the establishment
and commercial launch of a new business enterprise.

These factors raise substantial doubt about thep@ogs ability to continue as a going concern. During year ended Mach 31, 20
management has responded to these circumstantakiy the following actions:

« Raised $2 million in equity investment in the Comypén the form of private placements of common shdo accredited
investors. Funds have been used to fund curremabpes;

« Raised $2.5 million in investment in the Companthie form of secured debt. Funds have been usedfinance higher interest
rate secured debt, the expansion of our operatindgo fund current operatior

« Established a joint venture with Renaissance Diatapimc. focused on the creation of recipes andqutores to develop, market,
and sell la-grown fanc-colored diamonds; ar

« Enhanced efforts on expanding and optimizing prédnof existing manufacturing capabilities.

Accounting Basi

The financial statements of the Company have begpaped in accordance with accounting principletegaly accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”).

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, reesrand expenses, and the disclosure of contingsatsaand liabilities. On an ongoing basis, th
Company evaluates its estimates, including thdsgaekto revenue recognition, provision for doub#fccounts, sales returns, provision for
inventory obsolescence, fair value of acquiredrigible assets, useful lives of intangible assetspnperty and equipment, employee stock
options, and contingencies and litigation, amorgr. The Company generally bases its estimatégstorical experience and on various o
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable tmeleircumstances, the results of which formhkasis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities thatreoereadily apparent from other sources. Actualammrecorded could differ materially from
those estimates

In accordance with Accounting Standards CodificaftASC") 323, Investments—Equity Method and Joint Ventuytbe Company
uses the equity method of accounting for investsientorporate joint ventures for which the Comphay the ability to exercise significant
influence but does not control and is not the prim@eneficiary. Significant influence typically exs if the Company has a 20% to 50%
ownership interest in the venture unless predontiegidence to the contrary exists. Under this methidaccounting, the Company records its
proportionate share of the net earnings or losbeguity method investees and a corresponding @serer decrease to the investment balance
Cash payments to equity method investees suchditsoadl investments, loans and advances and eggéansurred on behalf of investees, as
well as payments from equity method investees ssdtiividends, distributions and repayments of l@atsadvances are recorded as
adjustments to investment balances. When the Coyfpearrying value in an equity method investereiduced to zero, no further losses are
recorded in the Company’s financial statementsasnlee Company guaranteed obligations of the equéttyod investee or has committed
additional funding. When the equity method ineestubsequently reports income, the Company wilteeord its share of such income until
it equals the amount of its share of losses natipusly recognized. The Company evaluates itstggmethod investments for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amounts of such investments moaye recoverable.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentguats receivable, accounts payable and notes [gagpproximate their fair value

due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, thegamy considers highly liquid financial instrumeptschased with an original
maturity of three months or less when purchasdzbtoash equivalents. At March 31, 2015 and 20 B4Ciimpany held no cash equivalents.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Shi

Net loss per share is presented under two forrbatsc net loss per common share, which is compugady the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during th@g@eand diluted net loss per common share, whicbrisputed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding, and the weghterage dilutive potential common shares oudstgncomputed using the treasury
stock method. Currently, for all periods presentildited net loss per share is the same as baslosseper share as the inclusion of weighted
average shares of common stock issuable upon #reiss of options and warrants would be anti-diiti

The following table summarizes the number of seéi@srioutstanding at each of the periods presenteith were not included in the
calculation of diluted net loss per share as timelusion would be anti-dilutive:

March 31,
2015 2014
Common stock options and warra 5,799,29! 9,609,29!

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

An allowance for uncollectible accounts receivablmaintained for estimated losses from custonfailsire to make payment on
accounts receivable due to the Company. Managededetmines the estimate of the allowance for uactihle accounts receivable by
considering a number of factors, including: (1xdial experience, (2) aging of accounts recewalld (3) specific information obtained by
the Company on the financial condition and theentrcredit worthiness of its customers. The Compdsg maintains a provision for
estimated returns and allowances based upon luat@xperience. The Company has determined thall@mance was not necessary at
March 31, 2015 or 2014.

Other Receivables

As of March 31, 2014, the Company considered aipgridsurance settlement over the actions of a Gmypupplier of $89,192 as
an other receivable. This settlement was paid duhie fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of average aostarket. The carrying value of inventory is mwved and adjusted based upon slov

moving and obsolete items. Inventory costs inclundgerial, labor, and manufacturing overhead andletermined by the “first-in, first-
out” (FIFO) method. The components of inventoriesas follows:

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
Raw materials and suppli $ 58,39( $ 35,54
Work in proces: 31,37: 25,61:
Finished goods 205,99¢ 91,66
$ 295,76( $ 152,81

During the first fiscal quarter of the fiscal yearded March 31, 2015, we experienced selling ptltatswere lower than cost and as a
result recorded a lower of cost or market write daf$68,722 to the value of our inventory whiclinisluded in cost of goods sold. During the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, the Company dexba lower of cost or market write down to inventof $100,557 which is included in
cost of goods sold. The estimation of the totatenliown to inventory involves management judgmentsassdimptions, including assumptis
regarding future selling price forecasts, the estéd costs to complete and disposal costs.
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Property, Plant and Equipme

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment isa@traight line basis beginning at the time fileced in service, based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Years
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Furniture and fixture 3-10
Engineering equipmel 5-12

Leasehold improvements which are included in facflked assets on the balance sheet are deprd@ata the lesser of the remain
term of the lease or the life of the asset (gehetlatee to seven years).

Expenditures for major renewals and bettermentsekignd the useful lives of property and equipnaeetcapitalized. Expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged to exmeseurred. Manufacturing equipment was placea setvice beginning July 1, 2012. The
Company incurred total depreciation expense of g8®Pand $700,690 for the years ended March 315 26d 2014, respectively.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, thenBany disposed of assets held for sale of $20,66Mmafixed assets that were no
longer necessary for the Company’s operations avitlet book value of $162,609. During the fiscalnygaded March 31, 2014, the Company
closed its operations in Hudson, Massachusettserudjnized a loss of $129,308 for the disposakdfin fixed assets at the location.
Concurrent with the closing of the Hudson facilitye Company re-evaluated the useful life of carfixied assets acquired from ADI in 2012
and decided that an impairment charge relatedesetlssets of $381,798 was appropriate.

Intangible Asset

Intangible assets, such as acquired in-procesandsand development costs, are considered todrairaefinite useful life until such
time as they are put into service at which time/tél be amortized on a straight-line basis oves shorter of their economic or legal useful
life. Management evaluates indefinite life intarigibssets for impairment on an annual basis arahdnterim basis if events or changes in
circumstances between annual impairment testsatelibat the asset might be impaired. The ongomgueation for impairment of its indefini
life intangible assets requires significant managenestimates and judgment. Management reviewnitiefife intangible assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaimdicate that the carrying amount of an assgtmot be recoverable. During the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2015, management evaluatetsassluded in IPRD and determined that certagjgots will no longer be pursued 1
further development resulting in an impairment geaof $418,065 being recognized during the fisealryThere were no impairment charges
during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014.

Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred income taxes reflect the consequences on future year:
of differences between the tax bases of assetBadnilities and their financial reporting amount&aluation allowances are provided against
deferred tax assets when it is more likely thanthat an asset will not be realized in accordanitie ASC 740,Accounting for Income Taxes

Management has evaluated the potential impactdawating for uncertainties in income taxes anddesrmined that it has no
significant uncertain income tax positions as ofréha31, 2015 or 2014. Income tax returns subjeog¥@w by taxing authorities include
March 31, 2010 through March 31, 2015.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation for the value of stociongts estimated on the date of the grant usiad@dlack-Scholes option-pricing
model. The Black-Scholes model takes into accauptied volatility in the price of the Company’s skp the risk-free interest rate, the
estimated life of the equity-based award, the olpsnarket price of the Company’s stock on the gdam¢ and the exercise price. The estimate
utilized in the Black-Scholes calculation involvihérent uncertainties and the application of mamagé judgment.

Concentration of Credit Risk
During the year ended March 31, 2015 the Compady3iadifferent customers and one customer accodatedore than 10% of our
total revenues. This customer was Grace Rich LD jant venture partner that accounted for $385,8Dtotal revenue. At the end of the

fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, the Company whisng substantially all of its production to th&€RC joint venture and had a receivable
from RCDC at March 31, 2015 of $241,950. The Comymatpects this concentration of sales to RCDC tdinae in the future.
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Revenue Recognitic

We recognize product revenue when persuasive esédefan arrangement exists, delivery of produatsdtcurred, the sales price is
fixed or determinable, and collectability is reaably assured. For our Company, this generally mésatsve recognize revenue when we or
our fabrication vendor has shipped finished prodoi¢the customer. Our sales terms do not allovafaght of return except for matters related
to any manufacturing defects on our part.

For product sales to our joint venture partnersfdiother processing and finishing, we currentlyetedll revenues when products
shipped. We currently recognize revenue when tim y@nture partner sells the finished goods mastufad from our materials. Licensing :
development revenues are recognized in the montletasled in appropriate licensing and developnuamttracts. In the event that licens
funds are received prior to the contractual committmthe Company will recognize deferred reveniadiflty) for the amount received.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardaifiq“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdateSW) No. 201202, Testinc
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmetii€ revised standard). Under the amendments iuffdates, a company has the option first
to assess qualitative factors to determine whatteeexistence of events and circumstances inditlaéshe it is more likely than not that the
indefinite-lived intangible assert is impaired dsasis for determining whether it is necessaryetdgum the qualitative impairment test in
accordance with Topic 350. The more likely thanthogshold is defined as having a likely-hood ofrentihan fifty percent. If after assessing
the qualitative factors, a company determines ésdwot meet the more likely than not thresholdhgraany is required to perform the
guantitative impairment test by calculating the failue of an indefinite-lived intangible asset aodnparing the fair value with the carrying
amount of the asset. The Amendments in this upatateffective for annual and interim impairmentdgserformed for fiscal years beginning
after September 15, 2012. The Company adoptedhéhisstandard in the fiscal year ended March 314 20 the adoption did not have a
significant impact on its financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Iricome Taxes Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax benefit WhBletaOperation Los
Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credar@/forward Existg*ASU 2013-11") which is part of ASC 74Mmcome TaxesThe new
guidance requires and entity to present an unrézedrax benefit and an NOL carryforward, a simitac loss or a tax credit carryforward on a
net basis as part of a deferred tax asset, uieasnrecognized tax benefit is not available tacedhe deferred tax asset component or woulc
not be utilized for that purpose, then a liabilitguld be recognized. ASU 2013-11 is effective fonaal and interim periods for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2013. The Companuriently evaluating the impact of the April 1, 20ddoption of this guidance on its
financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014R%&venue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 6Dis guidance requires an entity to
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of prothigmds or services to customers in an amountgfiatts the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thgseds or services. This guidance is effectiveafurual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016 and early adoption is not pezthifthe Company will adopt this standard in fisesr 2018. The Company has not yet
determined the effect, if any, that the adoptiothif standard will have on the Company’s finanpiadition or results of operations.

On May 28, 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, "Rerefrom Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),"shhaffects any entity
that either enters into contracts with custometsaosfer goods or services or enters into corgrfactthe transfer of nonfinancial assets unless
those contracts are within the scope of other statsd The guidance supersedes the revenue reaoggitidance in Topic 605, "Revenue
Recognition”, and most industry-specific guidarte®tghout the Industry Topics of the Codificatidihe guidance also supersedes some cos
guidance included in Subtopic 605-35, "Revenue Beition- Contract-Type and Production-Type ConsadDn April 1, 2015, the FASB
voted to propose to defer the effective date ofpfeemouncement by one year. ASU 2014-9, as ameileffective for annual periods, and
interim periods within those years, beginning abecember 15, 2016, or December 31, 2017, if dederhn entity is required to apply the
amendments using one of the following two meth@dtrospectively to each prior period presentéith three possible expedients: a) for
completed contracts that begin and end in the sapurting period no restatement is required, bxfmpleted contract with variable
consideration an entity may use the transactiarept completion rather than restating estimateidbie consideration amounts in comparable
reporting periods and c) for comparable reportiagqus before date of initial application reducéstibsure requirements related to transactio
price; ii) retrospectively with the cumulative effeof initially applying the amendment recognizédhe date of initial application with
additional disclosures for the differences of thiempguidance to the reporting periods compareitiéonew guidance and an explanation of the
reasons for significant changes. We are requirelopt ASU 2014-09 in the first quarter of fisc@ll8, or in the first quarter of fiscal 2019, if
deferred, and we are currently assessing the ingabts pronouncement on our financial statements.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014Diclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity's Algiio Continue as a Going
Concern, which requires management to assess, at eacllammdiinterim reporting period, the entity's ahitb continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the finandialesnents are issued and provide related disclestihee ASU is effective for the year ended
March 31, 2017, with early adoption permitted. TB@mmpany has assessed the impact of this standdrdoms not believe that it will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statetsmen disclosures.

There are currently no other accounting standénaishtave been issued but not yet adopted by thep&ayrthat will have a significant
impact on the Company’s financial position, resofteperations or cash flows upon adoption.

NOTE 2— INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The assigned values of all patents consideredriicgeby the Company are being amortized on agditdine basis over the remaining
effective lives of the patents.

Intangible assets, such as acquired in-procesandsand development costs, are considered todraireefinite useful life until such
time as they are put into service at which timeythvédl be amortized on a straight-line basis over shorter of their economic or legal useful
life.

Intangible assets consist of the following:

March 31, March 31,
Life 2015 2014
Patents, gros 6.75-19.46 $ 8,135,06. $ 8,135,06:
In-process research and development Indefinite 1,832,37! 2,250,43!
9,967,43. 10,385,49
Accumulated amortization (1,919,48) (1,144,85)
Net intangible assets $ 8,047,94 $ 9,240,64

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, mameye evaluated assets included in IPRD and detedrtimat certain projects will
no longer be pursued for further development resplh an impairment charge of $418,065.

Total amortization expense during the years endattM31, 2015 and 2014 was $774,627 and $775,84fiectively.
Total annual amortization expense of finite livathngible assets is estimated to be as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

March 31, 201¢ $ 774,84(
March 31, 201; 774,84
March 31, 201¢ 774,84
March 31, 201¢ 774,84(
March 31, 202( 595,15¢
Thereaftel $ 2,521,05!

NOTE 3— NOTES PAYABLE

On October 16, 2014, the Company entered into arfedmendment to Loan Agreement (“Amendment No.vidth Platinum
Capital Partners, LP (“Platinumtp its existing loan agreement dated as of Jun@@13 with Platinum, as modified by the First Amereht tc
Loan Agreement dated as of October 11, 2013. Utldeterms of Amendment No. 2, Platinum, among dthiegs, consolidated the
Companys credit facilities into one $1,500,000 note anféded $63,619 of interest that was due and payabl®eptember 30, 2014 under
Loan Agreement until December 19, 2014. The Comdsry executed two new promissory notes concugrevith Amendment No. 2: (i) a
Revolving Promissory Note dated as of October 07142n the principal amount of $1,500,000 in fagbPlatinum (the “New Revolving
Promissory Note”), which replaced the Compangtomissory Note dated as of June 21, 2013, ipriheipal amount of $1,000,000 in favor
Platinum, and the ComparsyPromissory Note dated as of October 11, 201emprincipal amount of $500,000 in favor of Platim and (ii) ¢
Deferred Interest Promissory Note dated as of Sdpde 30, 2014, in the principal amount of $63,61¢avor of Platinum (the “Deferred
Interest Promissory Note”). The New Revolving Presory Note had a maturity date of June 30, 2015rgedest on the outstanding principal
accrued at a rate of 18% per annum, compoundecdaipntihe Deferred Interest Promissory Note hadaéunity date of December 19, 2014
and interest on the outstanding principal accriaedrate of 18% per annum, compounded annually.|ddre agreement contained a number of
restrictions on the Company’s business, includagjrictions on its ability to merge, sell assetsate or incur liens on assets, make
distributions to its shareholders and sell, purel@dease real or personal property or other assetquipment. The loan agreement also
contains affirmative covenants and events of déefaul
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On December 16, 2014 the Company entered into a Bgaecement (the “HGI Loan Agreement”) and a Segukgreement (the
“HGI Security Agreement”) with Heritage Gemstonedstors, LLC (“HGI") providing for a $2,000,000 sged non-revolving line of credit
(the “HGI Loan”). The HGI Loan, which is represeshtay a Promissory Note dated as of December 15} gbg “HGI Note”), matures on
December 15, 2017. Borrowings accrue interesteatdte of 7.25% per annum and the Company intendgke monthly interest payments.
On December 18, 2014, $2,000,000 was drawn on €ileLldan. The Company utilized funds drawn on thel H@an to repay its existing
indebtedness to Platinum and to continue to fundrigoing operations. The HGI Loan Agreement castainumber of restrictions on the
Company’s business, including restrictions on [iifitst to merge, sell assets, create or incur liensissets, make distributions to its
stockholders and sell, purchase or lease realrsopal property or other assets or equipment. T&elkban Agreement contains standard
provisions relating to a default and acceleratibthe Company’s payment obligations thereunder uperoccurrence of an event of default,
which includes, among other things, the failur@ay principal, interest, fees or other amounts plyander the agreement when due; failut
comply with specified agreements, covenants omgalithns; cross-default with other indebtednessnthking of any material false
representation or warranty; commencement of bangyugr other insolvency proceedings by or against@Gompany; and failure by the
Company to maintain a book net worth of at leasd $dillion at all times. The Company’s obligatiamnsder the HGI Loan Agreement are not
guaranteed by any other party. The Company mayagrbprrowings without premium or penalty upon netic HGI as provided in the HGI
Loan Agreement. The HGI Loan Agreement requiresbmpany to enter into the HGI Security Agreeméimder the HGI Security
Agreement, the Company grants HGI a first priosigéurity interest in the Company'’s inventory, equiimt, accounts and other rights to
payments and intangibles as security for the HGIr.o

Also on December 16, 2014, the Company entereckhimntagreement for the Sale and Lease of Growers'@Glower Sale-Lease
Agreement”) with HGI to allow for the expansionafrrent growers and the purchase of new growersu@at to the Grower Sale-Lease
Agreement, the Company agreed to a sale-leasebasigament for certain diamond growers producethbyCompany during the term of the
Grower Sale-Leaseback Agreement by which the Cosnpélhsell diamond growers to HGI and then ledse growers back from HGI. The
term of the Grower Sale-Leaseback Agreement ig¢ans. For the new and upgraded growers, the gireit margin generated from the
growers will be split between the Company and HGAdcordance with the Grower Sale-Lease AgreeriiéetGrower Sale-Lease Agreement
requires the Company to operate and service thegygsy and requires HGI to up-fit certain existimgwers and to make capital improvements
to the new growers under certain circumstanceshéend of the Grower Sale-Leaseback AgreementC tinepany takes ownership of the
leased equipment. The Company will also have tjig tb repurchase the leased growers upon the ecme of certain events prior to the
expiration of the Grower Sale-Leaseback Agreement.

As of March 31, 2015, HGI has advanced the Comi$&®9,000 to fund improvements to our current gravilat will expand
manufacturing capacity in our production facility.addition, HGI has advanced the Company $200{060the purchase of new grower
equipment under the Sale-Leaseback Agreement. Asogh 31, 2015, the Company considers both oftlaelvances totaling $500,000 as
notes payable. The Company anticipates completiagjtower expansion and new equipment purchasegydte first half of the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2016.

NOTE 4— CAPITAL STOCK
The authorized capital of the Company is 75,000888@mon shares with a par value of $ 0.001 pereshar

At the request of the then Board of Directors,@menpany entered into an agreement, effective A@;il2014, with Mr. Joseph
Cunningham to provide consulting services to then@any. Under this agreement, the Company agreprbtade Mr. Cunningham $4,000 a
20,000 shares of common stock per month in exchiorgas professional services to the Company. Thistract expired in August 2014.
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, then@any issued 80,000 shares to Mr. Cunningham. T$teemes were valued at an average ¢
$0.43 per share based on the closing prices daftthees on the dates of grant and the Company reesh$34,200 in professional and
consulting fee expense for these shares durinfigted year ended March 31, 2015.

On June 20, 2014, the then Board of Directors grhrgstricted stock grants to Mr. Michael Laub @f0®0 shares for previously

performed services rendered to the Company. Thep@oyndid not recognize expense for this restristedk grant since it was in exchange
expenses previously accrued by the Company.

41




On June 23, 2014, the Company, members of its BafaBdrectors and various plaintiffs (See NOTE 1RIFIGATION) reached a
settlement agreement that resulted in the retudncancellation of 1,000,000 share of common stodké Company.

On July 15, 2014, the Board of Directors approvedissuance and sale of up to 2,000,000 shareswhon stock to accredited
investors at a price of $0.30 per share. On Sepge@fh 2014, the Board agreed to increase theo$ite offering up to 6,666,667 shares to
raise up to $2,000,000. The Company completedffieeiry on December 23, 2014 and issued 6,666,664es of common stock, at a price of
$0.30 per share, for total cash proceeds of $20000,

On October 30, 2014, the Board of Directors appddhe issuance of 50,000 shares to Bradley Robkbttte $15,000 of liabilities for
services rendered to the Company. Also on this, daeBoard approved the issuance of 95,522 sldusieck to an affiliate of our landlord to
settle $28,658 of outstanding rent liabilities. Hiares issued in each of these transactions waé&redsat $0.30 per share.

On March 12, 2015, the Board of Directors approedissuance of 333,333 shares to an affiliateasfdissance Diamond, Inc. to
settle $100,000 of liabilities for diamond seedentory purchased by the Company. The shares issubi transaction were valued at $0.30
per share, which was the market price of our stelo&n the inventory was purchased.

In addition, on March 12, 2015, the Board of Dicgstapproved the retirement of all 1,000,000 shiaetd in treasury by the
Company.

The Company had 56,531,499 shares of common s$sakd and outstanding as of March 31, 2015.

The Company had 5,566,795 warrants outstandingawtieighted average exercise price of $1.53 peesimof March 31, 2015. No
warrants were issued or exercised during the figeat ended March 31, 2015. 4,891,250 warrants avitaxercise price of $1.60 will expire if
not exercised during our next fiscal year endingdié81, 2016.

NOTE 5— SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company currently has one equity-based compiengalan under which stock-based compensation dswaain be granted to
directors, officers, employees and consultantsigiog bona fide services to or for the Company. Toenpany’s 2012 Share Incentive Plan
was adopted on May 7, 2012 (the “2012 Share Ineeflan” or “Plan”)and allows the Company to issue up to 5,000,00@eslaf its commo
stock pursuant to awards granted under the 2012 $heentive Plan. The Plan permits the grantingtofk options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted or unrestricted stock awards, phantacksiperformance awards, other stock-based awards)yy combination of the foregoing. The
only awards that have been issued under the Péastack options. Because the Plan has not beeoaipby our shareholders, all such stock
option awards are non-qualified stock options.

On September 25, 2014, the Company entered irdgexance agreement with our former Chief Execufiffecer, Mr. Michael
McMahon, whereby the Company granted him 416,6@reshof fully vested restricted common stock valae$i0.30 per share for a total va
of $125,000. In addition, the Company agreed taigeMr. McMahon 100,000 shares of restricted sa&lkompensation for the vested
options that expired due to his termination. ThenPany valued these shares at $0.30 per share emghized $30,000 in stock based
compensation expense during the fiscal year endadiv31, 2015. In total, the Company recognizedb¥BIV in severance expense in our
salaries and benefits expenses during the yeadevidech 31, 2015.

The following sets forth the options to purchasarek of the Company’s stock issued and outstarafiraf March 31, 2015:

Weighted- Weighted-Average

Average Exercisi Remaining
Options Shares Price Contractual Term
Options Outstanding April 1, 201 4,092,501 $ 0.87 2.2¢
Grantec 706,25( 0.3¢€ —
Exercisec — — —
Expired/Cancelled (456,25() 0.7¢ —
Options Outstanding March 31, 20 4,342,501 $ 0.77 1.7¢
Grantec — — —
Exercisec — — —
Expired/cancelled (4,110,001 0.7¢ —
Options Outstanding March 31, 2015 232,50( $ 0.3t 1.4¢
Exercisable at March 31, 2015 23,12 § 0.44 1.2C
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The intrinsic value of options outstanding and eisaible at March 31, 2015 and 2014 was $17,073andespectively.
The Company did not issue any options during tbeafiyear ended March 31, 2015.

A summary of the status of non-vested shares daoth 31, 2015 and changes during the year endednVBd, 2015 is presented
below.

Weighted Average¢

Grant-Date

Non-vested Share: Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at April 1, 201 2,466,16° $ 0.6
Grantec 706,25( 0.2z
Vested (575,62) 0.4t
Expired/cancelled: non-vested (182,000 0.3¢
Non-vested at March 31, 20: 2,414,79; 0.4¢
Grantec — —
Vested (122,000 0.43
Expired/cancelled: non-vested (2,083,41) 0.5Z
Non-vested at March 31, 2015 209,37! $ 0.21

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions outstanding by price range as of M&th2015:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining
Number Contractual Life Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average
Exercise Price Outstanding (years) Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$ 0.8C 7,50( 027 $ 0.8C 550 $ 0.8C
$ 0.3: 225,00 1.4¢ 0.3¢ 17,62¢ 0.32
232,50 145 $ 0.3¢ 23,12F $ 0.44

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, thep@oy recognized $0 and $193,150, respectivelgoagpensation cost for
options issued, and recorded related deferredsset af $0 for all periods.

At March 31, 2015, unrecognized compensation expeglated to non-vested awards was $44,529. Thisi€only expected to be
recognized if certain performance metrics are @thiover the weighted average remaining life ofaigons of 1.48 years.

NOTE 6— OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, the Campacognized $29,041 as its proportional shaiaafme from its joint venture
with RCDC. In addition, the Company recognized $238 in interest expense related to its notes gdayhht were outstanding during the
fiscal year.

NOTE 7— OPERATING LEASES

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, thenGany leased office space at a location in GrelenBlouth Carolina. Under the
terms of the lease, the Company is obligated togsaglation rentals for certain operating expengésreal estate taxes. The Company’s lease
in Greenville, South Carolina expires in March 20IBe Company leases electrical equipment in islyetion facility in South Carolina with
these leases expiring during the 2017 fiscal year.

The Company recognizes lease expense on a stiaighiasis and recognized $398,590 and $421,0&&8e expense for the fiscal
years ending March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectiiffélg.Company has other liabilities consisting deded rent payable of $118,092 ¢
$84,144 at March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectivelgirvum future rental payments under the leasesamamarized as follows:

2016 $ 407,41(
2017 361,66(
2018 224,411
2019 224,411
2020 —
2021 and thereaftt $ —
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NOTE 8— RELATED PARTIES

The Company incurred expenses of $19,658 for psafaal and consulting services provided by Adamsadkan, LLP, a firm in
which our former board member, Edward S. AdamsMiuthael R. Monahan were partners, for the fiscaryended March 31, 2014. The
Company and Adams Monahan LLP terminated theirgasibnal relationship on June 30, 2013 and the @agngdid not incur any expenses
with Adams Monahan LLP during the fiscal year entitatdch 31, 2015.

On March 6, 2013, the then Board of Directors retditwo then directors, Mr. Michael Monahan and Mreo Strous, to provide
consulting services for the Company. The Companggeized $45,000 in consulting expense for thesgcgs during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2014. These consulting service agreenveittishoth Messrs. Monahan and Strous were termthaffective June 30, 2013 and the
Company did not incur any consulting expenseseadltd these agreements during the fiscal year eMidech 31, 2015.

On January 6, 2014, the then Board of Directoraterka Special Litigation Committee (“SLC”) to cafes the merits of shareholder
allegations made in ongoing litigation. The Boapg@inted the current board member Mr. Theo StrowksMr. Laurence Zipkin, an unaffiliat
third party, to the SLC. During the fiscal year eddVarch 31, 2014, the Company recognized $93/750msulting expense for the shares
issued to Mr. Strous and $168,750 in total consgléxpenses for the SLC.

On May 27, 2014, the Board of Directors appointed Mmes Korn and Mr. Gerald McGuire as independrhbers to the Board.
Each of Messrs. Korn and McGuire were provided @80 shares of restricted stock upon their appointritethe Board. On June 16, 2014,
Board of Directors appointed Bruce Likly as a memdfeBoard and further appointed Mr. Likly to sea®the Co-Chairman of the Board. Mr.
Likly was provided with a restricted share granéi00,000 shares upon his appointment to the Board

On June 22, 2014, the equity granted to Messran Kokly, and McGuire for their service on the Bdaf Directors consisting of
250,000, 4,000,000 and 250,000 restricted shagepectively was returned to the Company. The Cogngahnot recognize any expense for
the restricted shares granted and returned to dhgp@ny since none of the grants had vested aintteedf their return to the Company.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, firectors of the Company participated in the Compapyivate placement stock
offering. Karl Leaverton purchased 333,333 shawe$100,000, Bruce Likly purchased 375,000 shase$112,500, Lewis Smoak purchased
666,666 shares for $200,000, Bern McPheely purch438,333 shares for $40,000, and Ben Wolkowitzipased 158,333 shares for $47,500

See Item 8, NOTES 10 and 11 for discussion of regemecognized from our joint venture partners.

NOTE 9— INCOME TAXES
There was no current or deferred tax expense (lefafthe years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.

The deferred tax asset (liability) at March 31, 2@hd 2014 consists of the following types of terappdifferences and their related
tax effects:

At March 31, At March 31,
2015 2014

Accrued expense $ 194,16' $ 235,99
Property and equipme (185,99) (150,819
Impairment of fixed asse 299,53 142,76
Capitalized startup/acquisition co: 461,63t 499,28t
Federal and state net operating loss «forward 5,344,98: 3,857,26!
Intangible assets 59,84¢ 14,531

$ 6,174,17 $ 4,599,04
Valuation allowance (6,174,17) (4,599,04)
Total $ — $ —

The Company recorded a valuation allowance agasset deferred tax asset at March 31, 2015 anaial, 2014, as the Company
believes that it is more likely than not that thgset will not be realized.
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At March 31, 2015 At March 31, 2014

Amount % Amount %
Tax at statutory federal income tax r $ (1,408,16) (34.0% $ (1,683,32) (34.0%
Increase (decrease) resulting frc
State income tax expen — 0.C% — 0.C%
Change in valuation allowan: 1,406,401 34.(% 1,671,94 33.8%
Incentive stock option — 0.C% — 0.C%
Other, net 1,762 0.C% 11,38 0.2%
Total $ — 0.C% $ — 0.C%

The Company had federal and state net operatisgclnsy-forwards (“carry-forward”) of $16,447,935606$10,231,000 at March 31,
2015 and 2014 respectively. These carry-forwaralg 83 expire in the year 2031.

NOTE 10— INVESTMENT IN GRACE RICH JOINT VENTURE

On September 16, 2013, the Company entered irtdesf agreements with SAAMABA, LLC (“SAAMABA™) ed S21 Research
Holdings (the “Grace Rich Agreements”) to form ajoventure with operations in the People’s RepubfiChina (“PRC”) to deploy a
minimum of 100 Company designed diamond growinghimees. Through the Grace Rich Agreements, the Cagnpains 30% of Grace Rich
LTD, a corporation duly established pursuant toléwes of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Regaf the PRC that is an investment and
holding company for the factory and distributiomiss to be formed pursuant to the laws of the PR@& wholly foreign owned enterprise.

Under the Grace Rich Agreements, the Company haeddo license its proprietary technology for tienufacture of diamond
gemstones of agreed upon specifications. In exah&orghe license, the Company will receive licegsievenue and 30% ownership in the
joint venture. In addition to the licensed techmyiothe Grace Rich Agreements include obligatiamste Company to provide and
compensated for technology consulting servicebéqdint venture to support the start-up of operati

The initial ownership interests in Grace Rich LTi2 as follows: SAAMABA LLC- 60%; Scio Diamond Teabiogy Corporation —
30% and S21 Holdings- 10%. The capital contribugicequired to finance Grace Rich LTD are requiresiehSAAMABA, and the Company
is not required to make any on-going funding cdmitions to the joint venture and its ownership ste&nnot be reduced from 30%.

The Company is licensing a portion of its paterteatinology to Grace Rich LTD and is not directiycuting any of its intellectual
property. Under the license agreement, the Compaggived $250,000 in licensing fees and $750,0@kielopment fees. The Company
believes the joint venture will be operational dgrcalendar year 2016 and once operations of GRaxteL TD have commenced, the Company
will receive $250 per machine per month in licegdiees with a minimum monthly payment of $25,00€Idhe joint venture starts to

distribute cash to its partners.

The Company has determined the fair value of ttenke agreement does not exceed the value of pleetex] returns from the joint
venture and accordingly established an initial stweent value of $0 for its interests in the joiahture and has not recorded any gains rela
its contribution to the joint venture. Grace Rich.was in its development stage through March 8152and did not have any revenues.
Expenses incurred by the joint venture were fonpilag and startup expenses.

As of March 31, 2015, the Company has not guardntddigations of the joint venture nor has it cortied to provide addition
funding. Therefore, the Company'’s share of thetjeentures net loss for the years ended March 31, 2015 b4 2@&re not recognized beca
the initial carrying value of the Company’s ownepsimterest in the joint venture was zero.

The Company recognized $375,000 and $625,000endiag revenues from Grace Rich during the fisealy ended March 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively. The Company recognized3®10of product revenue from Grace Rich during theafl year ended March 31, 2015."
Company incurred $96,776 and $151,359 of joint wentelated expenses during the fiscal years ektdedh 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
that were reimbursed by the Grace Rich LTD. Thegsalwursements were offset against the Companyasetloperating expense. The
Company had no outstanding receivables from orlgagadue Grace Rich LTD at March31, 2015.
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NOTE 11— INVESTMENT IN RCDC JOINT VENTURE

On December 18, 2014 the Company entered intoranggment with Renaissance Diamonds, Inc. (“Reaatss)) through the
execution of a limited liability company agreeméhe “LLC Agreement”) of Renaissance Created Diach@ompany, LLC, a Florida limited
liability company (“RCDC"), pursuant to which theo@pany and Renaissance are each 50% members of RCDC

The LLC Agreement provides that RCDC is a managanaged limited liability company, and each of tlerpany and Renaissance
will appoint one manager, with both such managppoiting a third manager. The managers will marthg day-taday operations of RCD(
subject to certain customary limitations on man@jjactions that require the consent of the ComparnyRenaissance, including but not
limited to making or guaranteeing loans, distribgtcash or other property to the members of RCD&ring into affiliate transactions,
amending or modifying limited liability company @ngizational documents, and entering into major aaie events, such as a merger,
acquisition or asset sale.

The arrangement was entered into in order to fatglithe development of procedures and recipesufiak fo market and sell, lajyown
fancy-colored diamonds. Pursuant to the LLC Agretnthe arrangement will last three years, urtlerssinated earlier, with the option to
automatically renew for additional two-year periods

The Company made an initial $1,000 investment iDR@nd was granted a 50% equity stake. RCDC hasghieof first refusal to
purchase diamond gemstones from the Company, imgudugh diamond preforms or processed stonesaiRsance may sell seed stock to
RCDC for production by the Company. RCDC purchasgh diamond material produced by the CompanisHas the rough gemstones and,
in turn, sells the finished stones to various tetaiand other participants in the market for gemss$. Profits generated by RCDC'’s operations
will be distributed between the Company and Reaaiss according to the terms of the LLC Agreement.

Through March 31, 2015 the operations of RCDC Hsaen focused on the development and processinigmibed material into
finished Gemstone material and establishing saldsd&tribution channels for the finished goodstoligh March 31, 2014, the Company has
sold product to RCDC valued at $241,950. The Complfers recognition of revenues and expensesasetsales to RCDC until finished
goods are sold by RCDC. Through March 31, 20150hmpany recognized $26,575 in revenue for prosolct to RCDC and has deferred
$215,375 of revenue and $179,969 of expenses ddiateur sales to RCDC. The Company anticipatesgrizing this deferred revenue and
expense as RCDC sells through its inventory.

The Company utilizes the equity method of accogntor its investment in RCDC. As such, the Compeegognized $29,041 as its
proportional shares of RCDC's net income duringftbeal year ended March 31, 2015 as other income.

Rollforward of the Company’s ownership interest in the joint venture for the yar ended March 31, 2015:

Balance of ownership interest in joint venture acBmber 18, 201 $ 1,00(¢

Aggregate fiscal 2014 equity gain — share oftjgenmture income 29,04:
Balance of ownership interest in joint venture atrbh 31, 2015 $ 30,04
Cumulative recognized income on ownership interegiint venture at March 31, 2015 $ 29,04.

Selected financial results for RCDC from inceptiorthrough March 31, 2015 are as follows:

Revenue! $ 124, 90!
Expenses 66,82t
Net Income $ 58,08:
Total Assets $ 551,40!
Total Liabilities $ 491,32:
Total Partners Capital 60,08:
Total Liabilities and Partner Capital $ 551,40!

46




NOTE 12— LITIGATION

On October 15, 2013, plaintiff Mark P. SennottTasstee of the Sennott Family Charitable Trustg(iSott”) filed a complaint
derivatively, on behalf of ADI, in the United StdtBistrict Court for the District of South Carolifdistrict Court”), against Edward S. Adar
(our then Chairman), Michael R. Monahan (a formenrher of the Company’s Board of Directors), the faewmm of Adams Monahan, LLP,
Loblolly, Inc., which was formerly known as Sciodbiond Technology Corporation, and the Companyédctilely, “Sennott Defendants”).
This derivative complaint on ADI’s behalf (the “Allerivative Complaint”) alleges claims for breadtiduciary duty, constructive fraud and
unjust enrichment. The ADI Derivative Complaint vedfectively settled on June 23, 2014. The setthanrecluded all claims previously
asserted against the Company by the parties namtbd Settlement Agreement. As part of the SettlérAgreement, 1,000,000 shares of
common stock were returned to the Company and dadc®©n February 13, 2015, the District Court estlean order approving the Stipulat
of Dismissal of the Derivative Action with Prejudic

On May 16, 2014 the Company received a subpoeneaddsy the SEC ordering the provision of documantsrelated information
concerning various corporate transactions betweiCompany and its predecessors and other pemsdrentties. The Company continues to
cooperate with this inquiry.

The Company recognizes legal fees for litigatioth&y are incurred as professional and consultieg.fThe Company then submits
the expenses to our insurance carrier for reiminuesé under our insurance policy. During the fisedr ended March 31, 2015, our insurance
carrier paid $168,015 for past legal fees fromgher fiscal year. This payment is recorded asdmcédon to professional fees during the fiscal
year ending March 31, 201

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, then@any reached an agreement with a former legalcgsrprovider that allowed tl
Company to settle outstanding past legal fees fsaor fiscal years. This settlement of $165,453 weaorded as forgiveness of legal accounts
payable during the fiscal year.

NOTE 13- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 7, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Compapproved restricted stock awards for Mr. GeMtdsuire, the Company
President and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. JbaatPfohl, the Company Chief Financial Officer. s$cGuire and Pfohl were granted
400,000 and 385,000 restricted shares of stocgentively that will vest on July 1, 2018. The rieted shares are valued at $1.03, the closing
price of the Company’s stock on May 7, 2015. Thenfany anticipates recognizing compensation expimdbese restricted stock awards on
a straight line basis over the vesting period.

In addition, on May 7, 2015, the Board of Directgranted Renaissance Diamond Inc. a restricted steard of 200,000 shares and &
grant of 333,333 non-qualified stock options thalyyorest based on the attainment of specific parforce criteria. The Company does not
anticipate recognizing any financial impact fordbeestricted stock and option awards unless ttferpgance criteria are met.

END NOTES TO FINANCIALS
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Disclosure controls and procedures refer to comtmold other procedures designed to ensure thatiafmn required to be disclosed
by the Company in the reports that it files or sitbrander the Exchange Act is recorded, processedmarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, aatltuch information is accumulated and communicetehe Company’s management,
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Rimcial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely &émns regarding required disclosure. As of
March 31, 2015, we carried out an evaluation, utideisupervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, bieteffectiveness of the design and operation oflmalosure controls and procedures as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. We appliedjodgment in the process of reviewing these costaold procedures, which, by their
nature, can provide only reasonable assurancediagasur control objectives. Based upon that ewanaour Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that ourcttisure controls and procedures were not effeetsvef March 31, 2015 due to the signific
deficiency discussed below.

Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control over FinanciaReporting

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbf and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promuldateder the Exchange Act. The Company’s internatrobover financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurageelig the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. The Companiiternal control over financial reporting incl
those policies and procedures that (1) pertainéartaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and the dispositions of the assets of the Comp@)ygrovide reasonable assurance that transadi@necorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordanitie generally accepted accounting principles, drad teceipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance withoaizitions of the management and directors of the@any; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiothef Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on its financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or a¢tmisstatements. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can peasidy reasonable assurance with respect to finhst@tement preparation and presentatior
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivesés future periods are subject to the risk thatmmds may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of campé with the policies or procedures may detemorat

Management including our Chief Executive Officedd@hief Financial Officer conducted an assessmetiteoeffectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of Mar31, 2015. In making this assessment, manageusedtthe criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission, or COSO, in Internal Control—IntégdaFramework (2013). During
this assessment, management identified the follpwignificant deficiencies in our internal contoder financial reporting, which is common
in small companies. This deficiency identified hy €hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial @#i following the end of the fiscal year
covered by this report:

« Due to our small size, we have limited segregatioduties in certain areas of our financial repartand other accounting
processes and procedur

A material weakness (within the meaning of PCAORI#ing Standard No. 5) is a deficiency, or a conaliion of deficiencies, in
internal control over financial reporting, suchtttieere is a reasonable possibility that a matemiaktatement of our annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected amely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficigm or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over financial reporting thatéss$ severe than a material weakness, yet impamanigh to merit attention by those responsibl
for oversight of our financial reporting.
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When management conducted this assessment at Blaré®14, management determined that material vessles in internal control
over financial reporting were in place. During fteeal year the following steps were taken to reiaedthese weaknesses:

« The establishment of a board of directors on J@&&Q@14 that includes a majority of outside ancepehdent directors;

e OnJuly 11, 2014, our Chief Executive Officer wasnmed a director of the Company. This addition ohaggement to the
board of directors has substantially enhanced jim@mmunication between the board and managemehedompany
related to issues affecting financial reporti

« The board of directors established a functionindjtacommittee compliant with NASDAQ listing requiments to oversee the
financial reporting and control structure of then@gany; anc

« We have improved our documentation of critical ficial processes and controls.

During the period covered by this annual reporForm 10-K, we have been able to remediate the mbhteeaknesses identified
above but due to the continued limited segregaifatuties in the finance and accounting functiohthe Company a significant deficiency
continues to exist as of March 31, 2015:

To remediate this deficiency, we expect to implentka following changes during our fiscal year egdMarch 31, 2016:

« Management is working with our outsourced accogntendor to provide enhanced separation of dutiesngst the
personnel participating in our accounting functi

This annual report does not include an attestaport of our independent registered public acdagrfirm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Management’s report wassubject to attestation by our independent reggst public accounting firm pursuant to an
exemption for non-accelerated filers set forth éctHn 989G of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reforrd @onsumer Protection Act.

Changes in Internal Controls

Other than described above, there were no significidanges in our internal controls over finanoéglorting that occurred during our
fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, that materidfigctied, or are reasonably likely to materiallyeatf our internal controls over financial
reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

NONE
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE.
Directors and Executive Officer

The following table sets forth the names and ad@esiodirectors and executive officers as of July 2015

Name Age Position with the Company Since
Directors

Bernard McPheel 63 Chairman June 23, 201
Bruce Likly 52 Vice-Chairmar June 23, 201
James Kort 58 Director June 23, 201
Karl Leavertor 59 Director June 23, 201
Gerald McGuire 54 CEO, President & Directc July 11, 201+
Lewis Smoal 71 Director June 23, 201
Ben Wolkowitz 70 Director June 23, 201

Nor-Director Executive Officer
Jonathan Pfot 48 Chief Financial Office March 4, 201:

Our bylaws provide that each director is to beteléat our annual meeting by the stockholders angesuntil his or her successor is
elected and qualified at the next annual meetintgss he or she resigns or is removed earlierdifdctors were elected at our annual meeting
on October 29, 2014. Directors serve until hisard$uccessor is duly elected and qualified, o tetior she is earlier removed from office or
resigns.

Set forth below is certain information about ouediors and executive officers, including inforratregarding their business
experience for at least the past five years, timeasaof other publicly-held companies where theyemnity serve as a director or served as a
director during the past five years, and additionfdrmation about the specific experience, quedifions, attributes, or skills that led to the
Board'’s conclusion that such person should sengediector for the Company.

BERNARD McPHEELY . Bern McPheely serves as nexecutive chairman of the Board. Mr. McPheely réigenetired in December 2012
President of Hartness International after more Bfgears of service. A leader in total solutitm¢he packaging industry, Hartness provides
equipment globally to more than 100 countries.nfFetartup and under Bern’s guidance, Hartness widigble every quarter since 1982. He
spearheaded short and long term strategic planmalgiding four major company-wide transformatigagaseposition the Hartness value
proposition, product portfolio and go-to-markebségy. Bern negotiated and executed the sale dghekss to ITW (lllinois Tool Works) and
was responsible for shepherding the transition feofamily owned business to a public company. Hediso been responsible for successful
synergistic acquisitions. From 2000-2002 Bern wesrenan of the PMMI ($6 billion member packaging@sation) and currently is on the
Board of Directors of Dorner Manufacturing CorpHartland Wisconsin. Bern was honored by Start Magaas one of the top ten “CEO
Visionaries Who Ignite Technology” and has brieRrésident Clinton and cabinet members on the efdiS business. Bern previously
worked with the US Department of Commerce. A graglad The Thunderbird Graduate School of IntermatidManagement, Bern also
received his undergraduate degree from Albion @eli@ Albion, Michigan. Mr. McPheely was a membéthe Board from August 13, 2012
until Mr. McPheely resigned from the Board on Ma&y; 2013. Mr. McPheely’s business experience qaalifim to serve as a director.

BRUCE LIKLY . Bruce Likly serves as non-executive vice-chairrafithe Board. Mr. Likly brings more than 25 yeafgechnology,
communications and management experience to Sexingl begun his career at IBM and worked to hetmgBun Microsystems from $1
Billion in sales to more than $10 Billion, Mr. Likhas spent the last decade as Principal at Kovdii-Communications where his team helps
companies develop and implement strategic saleskatirag and communications plans. This work presigincluded assisting Apollo
Diamond, the company whose assets Scio Diamondnbémyly Corporation acquired in 2011. Mr. Likly’s rkating and business experience
qualifies him to serve as a director.

JAMES KORN . James Korn is a hon-executive director of the @amy. Mr. Korn currently serves as the Chief ExieeuOfficer of Temp-
Air, Inc., a leading manufacturer of temporary isttial and commercial HVAC equipment. Prior to Tefip, Mr. Korn was the Chief Legal
Officer of Deephaven Capital Management, a $4dsilllollar multi-strategy hedge fund in Minneapdiinnesota. As an attorney in private
practice at Fredrikson & Byron, a 260-attorney fam based in Minneapolis, Mr. Korn developed esiga experience in both mergers and
acquisitions and in corporate finance. Mr. Kornefged his B.A. in economics, magna cum laude, fRmovidence College and his J.D., cum
laude, from the University of Minnesota Law Schddt. Korn has served as CEO of Temp-Air, Inc. sifé@7. Mr. Korn’s business and legal
experience qualifies him to serve as a director.
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KARL LEAVERTON . Karl Leaverton is a non-executive director of @@mpany. Most recently, from April 2012 to July, 2213 when it
was sold, Mr. Leaverton was the President/Chiefchttee Officer and a director of Seattle Northw8sturities Corporation, a broker-dealer
specializing in public finance investment bankisgles and trading of fixed income and asset managefacquired by Piper Jaffray in July,
2013). Karl has been the Chairman of SNW Asset idameent Corporation since July 2012, a fixed incgfolio manager with about $2.5
billion in assets under management. He has also theeprincipal of Blakely Management Company Llr@nfi 1993 to present, providing
business and management consulting for various aniap and disciplines. Mr. Leaverton is the forfersident of the Private Client Groug
RBC Wealth Management (January 2006 to April 2008 management responsibility for more than 2,880isors and assets under
administration in excess of $200 billion in asskts. Leaverton has more than 30 years of finaregalices experience. He earned a BS in
Chemical Environmental Science from the UniversityPuget Sound and completed the course work B @n Economics. He earned a
Master of Science degree in Infrastructure Managinem Stanford University. Mr. Leaverton’s busiseacumen and experience in finance
led us to the conclusion that he should servediseator of the Company.

GERALD McGUIRE . Gerald McGuire is the President, Chief Execu@fficer and a director of the Company. Mr. McGuirings over 25
years of semiconductor industry experience to Sidie. sen-conductor industry is expected to be a strong thiawea for Scio in the years
ahead. Mr. McGuire was most recently a Senior Woesident and General Manager of the Low-VoltageMid Power Analog Business at
Fairchild Semiconductor. Prior to Fairchild Semidaator, Mr. McGuire was the VP/GM of the DigitalgBal Processing business at Analog
Devices. He spent 23 years at Analog Devices iuartechnical, marketing and business roles. ptgiglties include: product marketing and
branding, product development and strategy. Mr. Mog&has spent his career determining what globstomners want and how to deliver it.
From 2007 to 2010, Mr. McGuire served as Vice Fasi of the Digital Signal Processing Division afadlog Devices, a global DSP and
embedded processor business From 2010 to 2013éBuire was Senior VP of the Low Voltage and Midao Analog Business Unit of
Fairchild Semiconductor, a global power semiconaiubtisiness.

LEWIS SMOAK . Lewis Smoak is a hon-executive director of tleenpany. Mr. Smoak is a founding partner of Ogketi@eakins, Nash,
Smoak & Stewart, which he helped establish in 18$#has served on the law firm’s Board and Compensand Pension Committees for
more than 45 years during which time the firm gfesm 16 to more than 700 attorneys and two offtce46. He has extensive experience in
the development and implementation of positive taktations programs for clients in all regiongteé country, including compliance with
employment, labor, safety, and environmental latts.is among the one percent of U.S. lawyers listeéthe Best Lawyers in America, and
has also been selected by his peers for inclusitimel ABA's College of Labor and Employment Lawyersd Chambers USA Leading
Lawyers in America. Mr. Smoak is the author of hcemprehensive nationwide labor relations stuidi¢ise construction industry. He has
served on the Greenville (president) and South IDar&tate Chambers of Commerce Board of Directéts.has served since 2002 as a
member of South Carolina BIPEC’s Board and its Exge Committee since 2004. He served as Chaimmhdime Board of Supermarket Radio
Network and negotiated its sale to Pop Radio amita¢ee Media. He currently serves as chairman efbard of Zumur, LLC, a st-up

internet search engine for consumer products Hesies community efforts on early childhood educaiisues, including service on United
Way'’s Success by Six Board, and chairing both GrilertCounty (2001-2003) and the State of Southoliaa’s First Steps for School
Readiness Board of Trustees (2003-2014). For bi&w early childhood education, he was recogniaed received the 2006 Ellis Island
Medal of Honor. Mr. Smoak’s legal expertise agacpcing attorney qualifies him to serve as aatoe

BENJAMIN WOLKOWITZ . Ben Wolkowitz is a non-executive director of thempany. Mr. Wolkowitz has had an extensive caireer
finance and economics. Most recently he headed $dadrinancial Technology Partners, a consulting firat advised technology companies
on how to position their products for the finandalvices industry. Previously he was a Managimgdr at Morgan Stanley where he had
several assignments in the Fixed Income Divisioer @/sixteen-year career including running theiariicial futures brokerage operation, and ¢
significant portion of the Fixed Income sales forde also was the head of Fixed Income Researclp@mdto retiring, he managed a portfolio
of Morgan Stanley invested technology companie$of@ehe New York phase of his career Mr. Wolkowitas with the Board of Governors
of the Federal Reserve System where he was in efudifginancial Studies, a department in the Divisib Research and Statistics responsible
for analyzing and advising Governors of the Boardinancial markets and financial institutions. MVolkowitz had previously taught at
Tulane University in the economics department amevas also a consultant to the Urban Institute askihgton, D.C. He has written and
lectured extensively on both theoretical and appigpics in economics and finance in addition teaothoring a book, Bank Capital. Mr.
Wolkowitz has a BA cum laude from Queens Collega @f°hD in economics from Brown University. Curheitie is a Town Council

Member, Madison N.J. and a member of the Advisasg@ of the Great Swamp Watershed Association ViMlkowitz’s financial experience
qualifies him to serve as a director.
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JONATHAN PFOHL . Jonathan Pfohl served as Chief Financial Officem March 4, 2013 to June 12, 2014 when he wasitextted withou
cause by the then Board of Directors. Mr. Pfohlime¢d to the Company as Chief Financial Officedone 25, 2014. Mr. Pfohl served as
Interim Chief Financial Officer of the Company fralanuary 16, 2013 to March 3, 2013 and before ltieeserved since December 19, 2012 a:
an independent contractor providing accountingrfoe and related services to the Company througbdmsulting company Rose Creek
Associates LLC. Mr. Pfohl has more than 25 yearfnaincial and management experience with stangfast growing organizations. Before
joining the Company, he served as CEO of Wirelegg@ss LLC, one of Spri's largest independent distribution partners, fidatember

2009 to October 2013. Prior to Wireless Express,Rfishl was CFO of Main Street Broadband LLC, aqiely held wireless broadband
service provider, from June 2009 to December 2QF) of Movida Cellular LLC, a mobile virtual netwoprovider, from April 2007 to

March 2008; and a Vice President with AirGate PIB8,, a publicly-traded regional provider of wiredecommunications services, from 1999
to 2005. Mr. Pfohl has a BS-Management and an MB#aifkce from the State University of New York at .

Family Relationships There are no familial relationships amongst argadors and officers.
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Bange Act of 1934

The rules of the SEC require our directors, exegeutifficers and holders of more than 10 percemusfcommon stock to file reports
of stock ownership and changes in ownership wighSEC. Based on the Section 16 reports filed bydoectors, executive officers and gre:

than 10 percent beneficial owners, and writtenas@ntations of our directors and executive officeesbelieve there were no late or inaccu
filings for transactions occurring during the fisgaar ended March 31, 2015 except as follows:

Number of Number of Late  Number of Missec Number of Missec
Name Late Reports Transactions Reports Transactions
Edward S. Adam 0 0 1 1
Thomas P. Hartne: 3 3 0 0
James Korr 1 1 0 0
Karl Leavertor 0 0 0 0
Bruce Likly 1 1 0 0
Robert Linare: 0 0 1 1
Michael McMahor 0 0 0 0
Bernard McPheel 1 1 0 0
Michael Monahatr 0 0 0 0
Jonathan Pfot 1 1 0 0
Lewis Smoalk 3 3 0 0
Theodorus Strou 1 1 1 1
Ben Wolkowitz 0 0 0 0

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Cobtithat is applicable to our executive officerglimling our principal executive
officer and our principal financial officer. A comf this Code of Ethics and Business Conduct islavie without charge to shareholders upon
request to the Company at 411 University RidgetedDj Greenville, SC 29601. We will disclose antufe amendments to, or waivers from,
provisions of Code of Ethics on our website as giyras practicable, as and to the extent requirater and applicable stock market stand
and applicable SEC rules.

Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expte

The Company established an Audit Committee dutiredfiscal year. The members of the Audit Committe=Ben Wolkowitz, James
Korn and Bruce Likly. Mr. Wolkowitz serves as chafrthe committee. The Company believes Mr. Wolkawjualifies as an audit committee
financial expert (as defined in Item 407 of RegolaiS-K).
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The following table shows the compensation awatdedarned by or paid to each individual who segdur chief executive officer

during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015. Wermdxecutive officers serving as of March 31, 26itter than our Chief Executive Officer
and our Chief Financial Officer.
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Summary Compensation Table

Fiscal Yeal
Ended Option All Other

Name and Principal Position March 31, Salary Bonus Awards Compensatior Total
Gerald McGuire (1 2015 $ 130,76¢ $ — $ — $ 56,54((3)$ 187,30

Chief Executive Office 2014 — — — — —
Michael McMahon(2 2015 $ 60,577 $ — $ — $ 319,30{(4)$ 379,88!

Former Chief Executive Office 2014 250,00( — — — 250,00(
Jonathan Pfot 2015 $ 200,000 $ — $ — $ 36,00((5) ¢ 236,00(

Chief Financial Office 2014 200,00( — — 36,00((5) 236,00(

(1) Mr. McGuire was appointed President and Chief ExeelOfficer on July 11, 201!

(2) Mr. McMahon was terminated by the then Boar®w&ctors without cause on June 12, 2014. The Goyexecuted a severance
agreement with Mr. McMahon on September 25, 2

(3) Mr. McGuire was paid $20,000 for consultinguéees to the Company prior to his hiring on July 2014. He was also provided $36,540
in temporary living expenses during the fiscal yeraded March 31, 201

(4) Includes cash and stock based compensatioMdudcMahon under the severance agreement betweeGompany and Mr. McMahon
dated September 25, 20:

(5) Includes $36,000 paid for temporary living expersas to Mr. Pfohl

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Ta

Current Executive Officers

Gerald McGuire. Gerald McGuire was appointed President, Chief Ettee@fficer and a director of the Company on Jldy 2014.
Mr. McGuire also serves as a director of the Corgpan

On March 31, 2015, the Company entered into an @npént agreement with Mr. McGuire (the " McGuire flayment Agreement
"). The terms of the McGuire Employment Agreemertsummarized below.

The McGuire Employment Agreement provides thatjestiio earlier termination as provided in the agnents, Mr. McGuire's
employment as President and Chief Executive Offiaéitbe for a term of three years, expiring on Mai81, 2018. Upon expiration of the
initial term, and subject to earlier terminationpasvided in the agreement, the McGuire Employnfereement will be automatically extenc
for successive one year renewal periods.

The McGuire Employment Agreement provides that McGuire will receive an annual base salary of $200, subject to periodic
review and increase by the Compensation CommiftdegedCompany's Board of Directors, in its disaeti In addition, Mr. McGuire will
receive a performance-based cash bonus under thealy's then-existing incentive bonus plan, théoperance and other criteria applicable
to which will be established and determined in agance with such plan. In order to receive hisuspMr. McGuire must be employed at the
time the bonus is paid.

The McGuire Employment Agreement also provides McGuire with certain other compensation and besgifitcluding eligibility to
participate in all employee benefit plans and paogg made available from time to time to the Comfza@yecutive and management
employees, paid time off, and reimbursement ofaralsle and necessary out-of-pocket business, taaekéntertainment expenses.

Under the McGuire Employment Agreement, Mr. McGugrentitled to receive severance benefits if hipleyment is terminated
under certain circumstances. In this regard, if McGuire's employment is terminated by the Compaitlgout "Cause” (as defined in the
McGuire Employment Agreement), by Mr. McGuire f@dod Reason" (as defined in the McGuire Employndgmeement), other than for
Cause in the 12 months following a "Change in Guttas defined in the McGuire Employment Agreemgehé will be entitled to the
following severance benefits: (i) a cash paymengétp 1.0x base salary if Mr. McGuire has beenleygad for 24 months, but only .5x base
salary if employed for less than 24 months, payabielump sum or ratably on a monthly basis ofsert2-month period following
termination; (ii) a pro rata portion, in cash, lbétannual performance bonus Mr. McGuire would hear@ed for the fiscal year in which
termination occurs if his employment had not cegaad (iii) payment of accrued vacation time purgua Company policy and
reimbursement for expenses incurred through the afaiermination, and accrued benefits throughGbmpany's benefit plans and programs.
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If Mr. McGuire's employment is terminated by thengmany for Cause or if Mr. McGuire voluntarily temates his employment, he
will be entitled to continue to participate in tBempany's medical benefit plans to the extent redudy law, and the Company will promptly
pay Mr. McGuire his accrued salary and vacation peiynbursement for expenses incurred through #te aof termination, and accrued
benefits through the Company's benefit plans andrams.

If Mr. McGuire's employment is terminated by reasdmleath or disability, he or his estate will lngitted to continue to participate in
the Company's medical benefit plans to the extptired by law, and the Company will promptly pay. McGuire or his estate his accrued
salary and vacation pay, reimbursement for expeinsesred through the date of termination, and aedrbenefits through the Company's
benefit plans and programs. In the case of disgplMr. McGuire will also be entitled to a pro ragtartion, in cash, of the annual performance
bonus he would have earned for the fiscal yearhithwtermination occurs if his employment had redsed.

Mr. McGuire is bound by noncompetition provisiohat restrict him from competing with the Companytiveertain exceptions) for
12 months following the termination of his employmheith the Company. Mr. McGuire is also subjechbn-solicitation restrictions with
respect to Company customers and employees fomao2dh period. Finally, Mr. McGuire is subjectdonfidentiality provisions protecting
the Company's confidential business informatiomfianauthorized disclosure.

The McGuire Employment Agreement did not includg stock based compensation for Mr. McGuire.

Jonathan Pfohl. Mr. Pfohl was appointed as our Chief Financiafi@f on March 4, 2013. On June 12, 2014, Mr. Pfehs
terminated without cause by the then Board. MohPfeturned to the Company on June 25, 2014 asf Emancial Officer.

On March 31, 2015, the Company entered into an @ynpént agreement with Mr. Pfohl (the "Pfohl Empla@mhAgreement"). The
terms of the Pfohl Employment Agreement are sunaedrbelow.

The Pfohl Employment Agreement provides that, stthif@earlier termination as provided in the agrests, Mr. Pfohl's employment
as President and Chief Executive Officer will bedderm of three years, expiring on March 31, 20W@on expiration of the initial term, and
subject to earlier termination as provided in theeament, the Pfohl Employment Agreement will biomatically extended for successive one
year renewal period

The Pfohl Employment Agreement provides that MoHPivill receive an annual base salary of $200,80bject to periodic review
and increase by the Compensation Committee of dmp@ny's Board of Directors, in its discretion.atidition, Mr. Pfohl will receive a
performance-based cash bonus under the Compaeypitisting incentive bonus plan, the performamzkather criteria applicable to which
will be established and determined in accordandke suich plan. In order to receive his bonus, MohPmust be employed at the time the
bonus is paid.

The Pfohl Employment Agreement also provides MohPfvith certain other compensation and benefitsluiding eligibility to
participate in all employee benefit plans and paogg made available from time to time to the Comfza@yecutive and management
employees, paid time off, and reimbursement ofaralle and necessary out-of-pocket business, taaekéntertainment expenses.

Under the Pfohl Employment Agreement, Mr. Pfoleimitled to receive severance benefits if his eyplent is terminated under
certain circumstances. In this regard, if Mr. Pfobmployment is terminated by the Company witH@ause" (as defined in the Pfohl
Employment Agreement), by Mr. Pfohl for "Good Redss defined in the Pfohl Employment Agreemeatter than for Cause in the 12
months following a "Change in Control" (as definedhe Pfohl Employment Agreement), he will be ged to the following severance
benefits: (i) a cash payment equal to 1.0x baseysdlMr. Pfohl has been employed for 24 monthg, dnly .5x base salary if employed for |
than 24 months, payable in a lump sum or ratablg aronthly basis over the 12-month period followiagnination; (ii) a pro rata portion, in
cash, of the annual performance bonus Mr. Pfohlldvbave earned for the fiscal year in which terrtioraoccurs if his employment had not
ceased; and (iii) payment of accrued vacation pursuant to Company policy and reimbursement fpeages incurred through the date of
termination, and accrued benefits through the Cayipdenefit plans and programs.

If Mr. Pfohl's employment is terminated by the Camnp for Cause or if Mr. Pfohl voluntarily terminatkis employment, he will be
entitled to continue to participate in the Compamgedical benefit plans to the extent requireday;, land the Company will promptly pay Mr.
Pfohl his accrued salary and vacation pay, reinthuent for expenses incurred through the date ofitation, and accrued benefits through
the Company's benefit plans and programs.
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If Mr. Pfohl's employment is terminated by reaséd@ath or disability, he or his estate will beitged to continue to participate in the
Company's medical benefit plans to the extent requdy law, and the Company will promptly pay Mfolfl or his estate his accrued salary
and vacation pay, reimbursement for expenses iaduhrough the date of termination, and accrueeéfitsrthrough the Company's benefit
plans and programs. In the case of disability, Rohl will also be entitled to a pro rata portiamcash, of the annual performance bonus he
would have earned for the fiscal year in which feation occurs if his employment had not ceased.

Mr. Pfohl is bound by honcompetition provisionstthestrict him from competing with the Company (witertain exceptions) for 12
months following the termination of his employmeuith the Company. Mr. Pfohl is also subject to saticitation restrictions with respect to
Company customers and employees for a 24-montbageFinally, Mr. Pfohl is subject to confidentigliprovisions protecting the Company's
confidential business information from unauthoriziéstlosure.

The Pfohl Employment Agreement did not include atock based compensation for Mr. Pfohl.
Former Executive Officer

Michael W. McMahonlIn connection with his appointment as our Chief&rive Officer effective on February 1, 2013, MiehsV.
McMahon entered into an employment letter withthe (McMahon Employment Letter”) that supersedezidéimployment letter and change of
control agreement he had previously entered intmimection with his employment as our Chief OpegaDfficer. Under the McMahon
Employment Letter, Mr. McMahon was paid a base ahsalary of $249,999, subject to potential incesdaa connection with an annual salary
review by the Board.

On June 11, 2014, Mr. McMahon was terminated witlvause by the then Board. Effective Septembe@5b4 we entered into a
Severance Agreement and General Release (the ‘@meeAgreement”) with Mr. McMahon pursuant to whied agreed to (i) pay Mr.
McMahon a severance salary of $4,167 per montB@anonths starting from the date of his terminat{@hgrant Mr. McMahon Common
Stock valued at 50% of Mr. McMahon'’s base annulargg$125,000), based on a stock price of $0.@ppay Mr. McMahon $2,000 per
month for reimbursement of medical, dental, visama Companyaid deductible insurance coverage for 13 mon#usist) from the date of h
termination, and (iv) award Mr. McMahon 100,000triesed shares of Common Stock as a replacemeffiiigsorested options. These payments
and benefits under the Severance Agreement aneaihskttiement of all wages and other paymentsdawédnim, and any and all claims under
the McMahon Employment Letter and in consideratiba release from Mr. McMahon of any claims agaurssarising in connection with the
McMahon Employment Letter. Mr. McMahon receivedutag salary payments pursuant to the McMahon Emmpent Letter through his last
day of employment with the Company.

Under the McMahon Employment Letter, Mr. McMahonsveantitied during his term of employment to papide in all employee
benefit plans and programs available to similaitiyaded employees (subject to eligibility) that have in force from time to time, and was
entitled to 20 days paid vacation each calendar. y#a McMahon was also entitled to options, grande February 2, 2013 pursuant to the
2012 Share Incentive Plan, to purchase a tota)58f01000 shares of Common Stock at $0.93 per gttaelosing price of our Common Stock
on the date of grant), which vested as followsian# to purchase 271,250 shares vested immedigpely commencement of employment; i
options to purchase 234,375 shares vested up@idimeonth anniversary of his start date.

Mr. McMahon’s Employment Letter provided that if MicMahon’s employment was terminated for any reasther than for
“Cause” (as defined in the McMahon Employment Ligtte his voluntary resignation, in exchange fareseral release by Mr. McMahon of us
and our officers, directors, employees, Stockhald@nd agents from liability, as well as one-year-golicitation and non-competition
covenants from Mr. McMahon, Mr. McMahon would hdeen entitled to receive, for 12 months following tiate of termination, (i) his base
salary plus (ii) $2,000 per month to offset hisquital medical, dental and life insurance expeasgsany premiums required under COBRA
comparable state law, each paid in accordanceowitipayroll and benefit policies. In addition, weuld also have (also in exchange for a
general release by Mr. McMahon of us and our officdirectors, employees, Stockholders, and adeortsliability) (1) extended the period
during which Mr. McMahon may exercise his optiorttwiespect to any portion or all of his vested @msito purchase shares to within 12
months following his date of separation, and (2ead not to exercise any right of repurchase. Thi¥ishon Employment Letter provided that
the options would have been exercisable for fivergdérom the vesting date, subject to approvahefBoard, provided that no options could
have been exercised after 10 years following thie dagrant. Mr. McMahon would have also remaisabject to the terms of our proprietary
information and inventions agreement.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table summarizes the outstanding goaivard holdings held by our named executive efficat March 31, 2015. At
March 31, 2015, there were no outstanding equitgrda/to any either of our named executive officers.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2015 Fiscal Year-End

Option awards
Number of Securities Number of Securities

Underlying Underlying Option

Unexercised Unexercised Exercise Option

Options (#) Options (#) Price Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (%) Date
Gerald McGuire — — $ — —
Jonathan M. Pfot — — $ — —

Director Compensatiot

The following table shows the compensation paithdiividuals who served on our Board of Directorsna of whom are named
executive officers, during the fiscal year endedda31, 2015.

Fees Earned ol Option All Other
Paid in Cash Awards Compensation
Name $)Q) ($)(2) ($) Total ($)
Edward S. Adam $ 1,25C $ — 3 — 3 1,25(
James Kortr — — — —
Karl Leavertor — — — —
Bruce Likly — — — —
Robert C. Linare: 1,25( — — 1,25(

Bernard M. McPheel — — — —
Lewis Smoak — —
Theodorus Strou 1,25( — — 1,25(
Ben Wolkowitz — - — _

(1) Includes board meeting and executive committee
(2) There were no option awards outstanding to anyrettbrs at March 31, 201

After the change in our Board of Directors on JABe2014, our directors did not receive any comatas for serving on the board
during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

Compensation Committee

The Company established a Compensation Committeegdiine fiscal year to provide oversight and dil@t with respect to
compensation of management. The members of the @wation Committee are Lewis Smoak, Karl Leaveatmh James Korn. Mr. Smoak
serves as the Chair of the Compensation Committee.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Paitiation

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, thiefang individuals served on our Board of DireorEdward S. Adams, Bruce
Likly, James Korn, Karl Leaverton, Robert C. Lingr&erald McGuire, Bernard M. McPheely, Lewis Smdaieodorus Strous and Ben
Wolkowitz. Messrs. Adams, Linares and Strous resibfrom the Board on June 23, 2014.

Mr. McPheely joined the Board on June 23, 2014 @ediously served on the Board from August 13, 204@ he resigned on May
13, 2013. In addition to serving on the Board afedtors, Mr. McGuire serves as the President andf@&xecutive officer of the Company. No
other director who served on our Board during theafl year ended March 31, 2015 is a former orezurofficer of the Company, or has other
interlocking relationships, as defined by the SEC.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners atnagement

The following table sets forth, as of March 31, 20the beneficial ownership of the outstanding camrstock by: (i) the persons or
groups known to us to be the beneficial owners ofenthan five (5%) percent of the shares of oustanding common stock; (ii) each of our
named executive officers and current directors;(@fdur directors and executive officers as aug. Unless otherwise indicated, each of the
stockholders named in the table below has solega@nd dispositive power with respect to such shafeommon stock.

Amount and

Nature of Percentage of

Beneficial Beneficial
Name and Address of Beneficial Owne Ownership(1)(2) Ownership
Directors and Named Executive Office
James Kort
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 — —%
Karl Leavertor
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 333,33: 0.€%
Bruce Likely
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 800,50( 1.4%
Gerald McGuire
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 — —%
Bernard McPheel
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 1,130,43/(3) 2.C%
Jonathan Pfohl
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 — —%
Lewis Smoal
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 1,026,66! 1.8%
Ben Wolkowit:
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 158,33: 0.2%
All directors and named executive officers as a gup (8 persons) 3,449,26! 6.1%
Other 5% Stockholder
Thomas P. Harthess Revocable Trust dated July(R@
1200 Garlington Road, Greenville, SC 29¢ 5,223,32/(4) 8.8%
Edwards S. Adams
287 E. 6" Street, Suite 140, St. Paul, MN 55: 3,790,00((5) 6.7%
Michael R. Monahan
4824 Thomas Avenue S, Minneapolis, MN 5¢ 3,756,18i(5) 6.€%

(1) Includes shares for which the named persorsbigsvoting and investment power, has shared veatinthinvestment power, or holds in an
IRA or other retirement plan and shares held byntimaed perscs spouse

(2) For purposes of this table, a person or grdypecsons is deemed to have “beneficial ownersbf@ny shares of common stock which 1
person has the right to acquire within 60 dayfelihg March 31, 2015. For purposes of computingpbieentage of outstanding share
common stock held by each person or group of peraamed above, any shares which that person ansehas or have the right to
acquire within 60 days following March 31, 2015d=emed to be outstanding, but is not deemed tutstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of any othesqme
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(3) Mr. McPheely owns 817,935 common shares istiuwedigh the Bernard M. McPheely Revocable TrusDIV® May 25, 2011 The
number reported includes 312,500 warrants issuedrinection with the purchase of units from the pany consisting of one share of
common stock and one warrant for the purchasesbfige of common stoc

(4) The number reported includes 2,500,000 Warrastged to the Trust in connection with its purehfiem the Company of units consisting
of one share of common stock and one warrant ptirchase of a share of common stock. All shaesrted are held by Thomas P.
Hartness as trustee of the Trust, and in that dypslc. Hartness has sold voting and dispositivevpowith respect to such shar

(5) Based on information contained in Schedule 13RI fildth the SEC on February 13, 20

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Cpensation Plans

The following table summarizes the sole equity cengation plan under which shares of the Compamytsnwon stock may be issued as
of March 31, 2015.

Number of securities

Number of remaining
securities Weighted- available for future
to be issued upon average issuance under
exercise of exercise price of  equity compensatior
outstanding outstanding plans
options, options, (excluding securities
warrants and warrants reflected in
Plan Category rights and rights Column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs — — —
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechadtglers:
2012 Share Incentive Plan 232,500 $ 0.35 4,767,50(1)
Total 232,500 $ 0.35 4,767,50

(1) The 2012 Share Incentive Plan provides for theaisse of any shares available under the plan ifotime of restricted or unrestricte
stock awards, phantom stock, performance awardsted types of stock-based awards, in additiathéagranting of options or
stock appreciation right

The Scio Diamond Technology Corp. 2012 Share Iieerlan (the “2012 Share Incentive Plan”) was &edfy the Company’s Board
of Directors on May 7, 2012. The 2012 Share In&eniillan permits the granting of stock options, lstmgpreciation rights, restricted or
unrestricted stock awards, phantom stock, perfoomamwards, other stock-based awards, or any cotidrina the foregoing. Up to 5,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock are authof@@édsuance pursuant to awards granted unde2@h2 Share Incentive Plan to the
Company'’s directors, officers, employees and cdasts providing bona fide services to or for therpany.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Related Party Transaction

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, fiirectors of the Company participated in the Commpyivate placement stock
offering. Karl Leaverton purchased 333,333 shave$100,000, Bruce Likly purchased 375,000 shaoe$112,500, Lewis Smoak purchased
666,666 shares for $200,000, Bern McPheely purch438,333 shares for $40,000, and Ben Wolkowitzlpased 158,333 shares for $47,500

Director Independenct

Our Board has determined that Messrs. McPheelyn Kazaverton, Likly, Smoak and Wolkowitz are “inéglent” directors, based upon
the independence criteria set forth in the corgogatvernance listing standards of The NASDAQ Stdekket, the exchange that the Board
selected in order to determine whether our direcémd committee members meet the independenceatfea national securities exchange, a
required by Item 407(a) of Regulation S-K. Our Bbhas determined that Mr. McGuire is not indepenh@@sed on these criteria.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

On March 22, 2012, the Board of Directors engagleery Bekaert LLP to serve as the Company'’s indégeenauditor for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2012. Cherry Bekaert LLP le@s lout auditor for all subsequent fiscal ye

The following table shows the expenses that werhecufor services performed in fiscal years endeddid 31, 2015 and 2014:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014
Audit Fees $ 112,20 $ 80,00(
Audit-Related Fee — —
Tax Fees 8,57t 7,50(
All Other Fees — —
Total $ 120,77¢ $ 87,50(
Audit Fees

This category includes the aggregate fees billegfofessional services rendered by the indeperalatitors during the Company’s 2015 and
2014 fiscal years for the audit of the Company’suai financial statements, quarterly reports omFd0-Q, and SEC registration statement.

Audit Related Fee:

This category includes the aggregate fees billeghfofessional services rendered by the indeperalatitors during the Company’s 2015 and
2014 fiscal years for other audit related services.

Tax Fees

This category includes aggregate fees billed fofgmsional services rendered by the independeiritbasiduring the Company’s 2015
and 2014 fiscal years for preparation of tax retiand related advisory services.

All Other Fees

This category includes the aggregate fees billegfofessional services rendered by the indeperalatitors during the Company’s
2015 and 2014 fiscal years for employee compensatiated advisory services and other advisoryisesv

Oversight of Accountants; Approval of Accounting Ee
The Company’s Audit Committee approved the accogrgervices and fees reflected in the table fofival year ended March 31,

2015. For the prior fiscal year, the fees were apgd by the whole Board of Directors, and nonéhefgervices were performed by individuals
who were not employees.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@)

1)

Financial Statemer

The following financial statements are locatedtém 8 of this Report:
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014

Statements of Operations for the years ended M2itcR015 and 2014
Statements of Cash Flow for the years ended Mat¢cR@®L5 and 2014
Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the yeaedrdarch 31, 2015
Notes to the Financial Statements

(3)

Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed with this Repont &orm 10-K as required by Item 601 of Regulatiel:S

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

10.1

10.2

Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by refererto Exhibit 3.1 to the Form-1/A filed with the SEC on May 13, 201(

Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorption (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1¢a)he Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on August 11, 201:

Amended and Restated bylaws (incorporated fieyerece to Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 8-K filed withet SEC Commission on
June 26, 2014

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorpblateeference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 8-K filedh the SEC on
November 4, 2014

Loan Agreement dated as of June 21, 2013 betweaerD&amond Technology Corporation and Platinum @dgtartners, Li
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thenk&-K filed with the SEC on September 20, 201

Security Agreement dated as of June 21, 20tW@ded Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and Rlaiti Capital Partners,
LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Boem ¢-K filed with the SEC on September 20, 201

Promissory Note dated as of June 21, 2013 fma&eio Diamond Technology Corporation in favoPtdtinum Capital
Partners, LP (incorporated by reference to ExHil8tto the Form -K filed with the SEC on September 20, 201

First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Octahef013 between Scio Diamond Technology Corpamaaind Platinum
Capital Partners, LP (incorporated by referendéxioibit 4.1 to the Form-K filed with the SEC on October 18, 201

Promissory Note dated October 11, 2013 madeciy Diamond Technology Corporation in favor oftiPlam Capital
Partners, LP (incorporated by reference to ExHilditto the Form-K filed with the SEC on October 18, 201

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated @siber 16, 2014, by and between the Company ktchém Capital
Partners, LP (incorporated by reference to ExHiBif. to the Form-K filed with the SEC on October 22, 201

Loan Agreement dated as of December 16, 2@td/den the Company and Heritage Gemstone Investos(incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Forr-K filed with the SEC on December 22, 201

Security Agreement dated as of December 164,2itween the Company and Heritage Gemstone brgedtl C
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to tloenk &-K filed with the SEC on December 22, 201

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Krosklotging Corporation and Scio Diamond Technologyp@oation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tloenk &-K/A filed with the SEC on August 15, 201:

Schedule 1.1(a) “Acquired Assets” of the Agaatchase Agreement by and among Krossbow Holdargdzation and Scio

Diamond Technology Corporation (incorporated byrefice to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K/A filed withe SEC on
August 15, 2011)
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10.3 Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Scinddid Technology Corporation and Apollo Diamond, lficcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 10-Q/A faoe fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2011 filel thie SEC on
August 16, 2012)

10.4  Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Scio Diamiednology Corporation and Apollo Diamond GemstGoeporatior
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to tleenk 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 20i&fwith the SEC on
August 16, 2012)

10.5 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by ameeba Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and Jo§efd.ancic
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tloenk &-K filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012). |

10.5A Change in Control Agreement by and betweea Bmamond Technology Corporation and Joseph D claa(incorporated by
reference to the Exhibit 10.4 to Fori-K filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012). (

10.5B Agreement of Separation, Waiver, and Rele&deseph D. Lancia (incorporated by referencexuitiit 10.1 to the Form &
filed with the SEC on December 7, 2012).

10.6 Amended and Restated Employment Agreemenhtyatween Scio Diamond Technology Corporation@ndrles G.
Nichols (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 3he Form -K filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012). |

10.6A Change in Control Agreement by and betweea Biamond Technology Corporation and Charles @huis (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Fori-K filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012). |

10.6B Agreement of Separation, Waiver, and MutugleRse of Charles G. Nichols (incorporated by esfee to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Form &K filed with the SEC on December 7, 2012).

10.7 Amended and Restated Employment Agreemenhtyatween Scio Diamond Technology CorporationMiahael W.
McMahon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1#®.2he Form -K filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012). |

10.7A Employment Letter with Michael McMahon (inporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Fori fed with the SEC on
February 4, 2012). (!

10.7B Change in Control Agreement by and betweénm Biamond Technology Corporation and Michael W.N{&hon
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to tloenk &-K filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012). |

10.7C Severance Agreement and General ReleasetiwdfSeptember 25, 2014, between the Company ackad W. McMahon
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlenk &-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2014).:

10.8 Subscription Agreement dated May 4, 2012 (ioa@ted by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the F&G¥K for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2012 filed with the SEC on Augést2D12).

10.9 Form of Warrant by and between Scio Diamonchfelogy Corporation and certain Investors (incoaped by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Form-K filed with the SEC on May 10, 201z

10.10 Scio Diamond Technology Corp. 2012 Shareritioe Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibi?1i® the Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on February 4, 2012).

10.10A Scio Diamond Technology Corp. Amended anst@&®ed 2012 Share Incentive Plan (incorporatecfarence to
Exhibit 10.10A to the Form -K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 filedhithe SEC on June 29, 2015).

10.10B Form of Qualified Stock Option Grant Agreerniey and between Scio Diamond Technology Corpaonadind certain
Executive Officers (incorporated by reference tdibit 10.7 to the Form-K filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012). |

10.10C Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement (Noralied Stock Option) for Noremployee Directors (incorporated by refere
to Exhibit 10.6 to the Form -Q filed with the SEC on February 14, 2013).

10.10D Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incaaped by reference to Exhibit 10.10D to the FornKifor the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2015 filed with the SEC on June 29, 20(B)

10.11 Lease with Innovation Center (incorporatededgrence to Exhibit 10.01 to the Form 10-Q far fiscal quarter year ended
March 31, 2012 filed with the SEC on August 16, 20

10.11A Supplemental Notice to Lease dated October 14, 281 4nd between Scio Diamond Technology Corpanadind Innovatiol
Center, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhil@it1¥4 to the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended ¢had1, 2012 filed with
the SEC on August 16, 201.
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10.12 Employment Letter Agreement of Stephen Dlggdlincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3he Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on December 7, 2012). |

10.13 Employment Letter Agreement dated March 432f8etween Scio Diamond Technology CorporationJrhthan Pfohl
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tloenk &-K filed with the SEC on March 7, 2013). (

10.13B Employment Agreement dated March 31, 201%édxen Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and JaraPfohl
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to F@&-K filed with the SEC on April 6, 2015).(:

10.14 Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (incatpdrby reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Form 8kgdfwith the SEC on
August 8, 2012)

10.14A Code of Conduct (incorporated by referencExhibit 10.14A to the Form 1R-for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 {
with the SEC on June 29, 201

10.14B Corporate Governance Guidelines (incorpdrhjereference to Exhibit 10.14B to the Form 10eKthe fiscal year ended
March 31, 2015 filed with the SEC on June 29, 20

10.15 Warrant dated March 25, 2013 by and between S@mbnd Technology Corporation and Theodorus Striogsiporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Forn-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 filedhathe SEC on June 27, 2013).

10.16 Warrant dated March 25, 2013 by and betweenmHamond Technology Corporation and Filip De \\td€incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Form-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 filedhathe SEC on June 27, 201

10.17 Consulting Agreement dated March 6, 2013rtdyl@etween Scio Diamond Technology CorporationEmebdorus Strous
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 toFeem 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 264 with the SEC on
June 27, 2013). (!

10.18 Consulting Agreement dated March 6, 2013rylzetween Scio Diamond Technology CorporationMiwthael R. Monahan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 tofeem 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 26tk# with the SEC on
June 27, 2013). (!

10.19 Joint Venture Agreement, by and between B@mond Technology Corporation, SAAMABA, LLC and BResearch
Holdings, dated September 16, 2013 (incorporategtfeyence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q fileithwihe SEC on
November 14, 2013

10.20 Shareholders Agreement, by and between Saimdhd Technology Corporation, SAAMABA, LLC and SR&search
Holdings, dated September 16, 2013 (incorporategtfarence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q fileithwhe SEC on
November 14, 2013

10.21 License Agreement, by and between Scio Dianf@thnology Corporation and Grace Rich LimitededeéSeptember 16,
2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8hvForm 1-Q filed with the SEC on November 14, 201

10.22 Development Agreement, by and between S@mbind Technology Corporation and Grace Rich Limitieded September
16, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.8he Form 1-Q filed with the SEC on November 14, 201

10.23 Consulting Services Agreement, by and betv@sém Diamond Technology Corporation and Grace Riofited, dated
September 16, 2013 (incorporated by reference hibix10.4 to the Form +Q filed with the SEC on November 14, 201

10.24 Rights Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2@ktween Scio Diamond Technology Corporation angitarStock Transfer
Inc. which includes the Form of Rights CertificaeExhibit A and Summary of Rights to purchase Com@&tock as Exhib
B (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Bwem ¢-K filed with the SEC on April 16, 2014

10.25 Amendment No. 1, dated June 22, 2014 to Ribteement, dated as of April 15, 2014, by anavben Scio Diamond
Technology Corporation and Empire Stock Transfer (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Floem 8-K filed with
the SEC on June 26, 201

10.26  Settlement Agreement, dated as of June 23,2y and among the Company, the Adams Grouplen8ave Scio Group
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to tloenk &-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 201
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10.27

10.28

10.29

23
24
311
31.2
32

101

1)

Agreement for the Sale and Lease of Growateddas of December 16, 2014, between the Compahiferitage Gemstone
Investors, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhilfi.3 to the Form-K filed with the SEC on December 22, 201

Renaissance Created Diamond Company, LLCtédhliiability Company Agreement, dated as of Decendl8, 2014,
between the Company and Renaissance Diamond meorgiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenk8K filed with the
SEC on December 23, 201

Employment Agreement dated March 31, 201%dsert Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and GdvalGuire
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to F&-K filed with the SEC on April 6, 2015).(:

Consent of Cherry Bekaert LLP. (incorporated byrefice to Exhibit 23 to Form -K filed with the SEC on June 29, 201
Power of Attorney (contained herein as part ofdigmature pages)

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Office

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officel

Section 1350 Certifications of the Chief Execut®#icer and Chief Financial Officer.

The following materials from the Company’s AahReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endeddia31, 2015,
formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting LangudRL); (i) Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2018 2614;

(i) Statements of Operations for the years endegdchl 31, 2015 and 2014; (iii) Statements of Shddeins’ Equity for the
years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014; (iv) Statesrefr€ash Flow for the years ended March 31, 20b52814; anc

(v) Notes to the Financial Statements (incorporétedeference to Exhibit 101 to Form 10-K filed wthe SEC on June 29,
2015).

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan @ngement required to be filed as an Exhibit to #riaual Report on

Form 1(-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Date: July 29, 201 SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
/s/ Gerald McGuirt
Chief Executive Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personoat signature appears below constitutes and agp@arald McGuire
his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agenthviill power of substitution and resubstitution; fom and in his name, place and stead, in an
and all capacities, to sign any and all amendntenttsis Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file #ane, with all exhibits thereto, and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Semgiand Exchange Commission, granting unto atteimégct and agent full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actthimg) requisite or necessary to be done in andtabeypremises, as fully to all intents and
purposes as he might or could do in person, hawgifying and confirming all that attorney-in-faatd agent, or his substitute or substitutes,
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue héreo

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Date: June 29, 2015 /s/ GERALD McGUIRE
Gerald McGUIRE
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: June 29, 2015 /s/ JONATHAN PFOHL
Jonathan Pfot
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Accounting and Financial Office

Date: June 29, 2015 /s/ BERNARD McPHEELY

Bernard McPheel
Chairman and Directc

Date: June 29, 2015 /s/ BRUCE LIKLY
Bruce Likly
Vice-Chairman and Directc

Date: June 29, 2015 /s/ JAMES KORN
James Korr
Director

Date: June 29, 2015 /sl KARL LEAVERTON
Karl Leavertor
Director

Date: June 29, 2015 /s/ LEWIS SMOAK
Lewis Smoal
Director

Date: June 29, 2015 /s BEN WOLKOWITZ
Ben Wolkowitz
Director
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24 Power of Attorney (contained herein as part ofdigmature page:
31.1 Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Offic
31.2 Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Offic

32 Section 1350 Certifications of the Chief Execut®#icer and Chief Financial Office
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Exhibit 31.1
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Exective Officer
I, Gerald McGuire, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporForm 10-K/A of Scio Diamond Technology Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this reporsduat contain any untrue statement of a materildaomit to state a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandiaesnents, and other financial information includtethis report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying o#fi(s) and | are responsible for establishing aathtaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15a@&})afd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

€)) Designed such disclosure controlsmodedures, or caused such disclosure controlprmugdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant is made known to us byeagtwithin those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control oveafficial reporting, or caused such internal cordgrar financial reporting to be desigr
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgateant’s disclosure controls and procedures aadgmted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie registrant’s internal control over finanagigborting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying offr(s) and | have disclosed, based on our mosthtres@luation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and mi@a weaknesses in the design or operation of iatiezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectriagistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materialat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: July 29, 2015
By: /s/ Gerald McGuirt
Gerald McGuire
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Offig¢




Exhibit 31.2
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Finartial Officer
I, Jonathan Pfohl, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporForm 10-K/A of Scio Diamond Technology Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this reporsduat contain any untrue statement of a materildaomit to state a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandiaesnents, and other financial information includtethis report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying o#i(s) and | are responsible for establishing aathtaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15a@&})afd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

€)) Designed such disclosure controlsmodedures, or caused such disclosure controlprmugdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant is made known to us byeagtwithin those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control oveafficial reporting, or caused such internal cordgrar financial reporting to be desigr
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgateant’s disclosure controls and procedures aadgmted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie registrant’s internal control over finanagigborting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying offr(s) and | have disclosed, based on our mosthtres@luation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and mi@a weaknesses in the design or operation of iatiezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectriagistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materialat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: July 29, 2015
By: /s/ Jonathan Pfol
Jonathan Pfof
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, the President and Chief Exec@ifieer and the Chief Financial Officer of Scio Diand Technology Corporati
(the*Company”), each certify that, to his knowledwethe date of this certification:

1. The annual report of the Company ffier period ended March 31, 2015 as filed with theuSges and Exchange Commission on
date (the “Report”) fully complies with the requinents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritieshHange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Régairly presents, in all material respects, theaficial condition and result of operations of
Company.

Date: July 29, 201
/s/ Gerald McGuire
By: Gerald McGuire
Its: Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Offige

Date: July 29, 201
/s/ Jonathan Pfol
By: Jonathan Pfot
Its: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe




